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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Activia Properties Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Activia Properties Inc., which comprise the
balance sheets as at November 30, 2012, May 31, 2013, November 30, 2013, May 31, 2014, November 30,
2014 and May 31, 2015 and the statements of operations, changes in unitholders’ equity, cash distributions
and cash flows for the fiscal periods then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The purpose
of an audit of the financial statements is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control, but in making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal controls relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Activia Properties Inc. as at November 30, 2012, May 31, 2013, November 30, 2013, May 31,
2014, November 30, 2014 and May 31, 2015, and their financial performance and cash flows for the
fiscal periods then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Ll B Gourg Shinnihon | L C

August 25, 2015
Tokyo, Japan

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Financial Statements
(1) Balance Sheets

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Noé/ser’zr)]fber Asslole(\)llfg Noélser%fber /-\Sslole(\)/lfz/ Noélser%fber Aglefz'\Oﬂfg
30, 2012 ' 30, 2013 ' 30, 2014 '
Assets
Current assets
Cash and deposits 5,586,163 4,707,652 5,016,162 7,702,411 8,585,158 9,743,232
Cash and deposits in trust 1,048,439 1,052,109 1,147,579 1,471,491 1,540,009 3,007,251
Operating accounts receivable 156,242 178,217 200,590 304,241 316,083 353,933
Prepaid expenses 110,647 223,261 151,720 273,265 170,163 288,392
Deferred tax assets 26 16 16 22 11 17
Consumption taxes receivable 1,446,329 - - 541,917 - 359,151
Other — — 126 353 - 1,546
Total current assets 8,347,848 6,161,257 6,516,196 10,293,704 10,611,426 13,753,525
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment
Buildings in trust 30,445,044 33,521,802 34,180,684 48,593,214 52,319,762 61,617,753
Accumulated depreciation (428,592) (891,456) (1,382,563) (2,013,828) (2,734,761) (3,573,458)
Buildings in trust, net 30,016,451 32,630,345 32,798,121 46,579,386 49,585,001 58,044,295
Structures in trust 323,045 352,430 360,792 395,537 403,342 548,652
Accumulated depreciation (8,823) (18,096) (28,285) (39,436) (49,339) (62,644)
Structures in trust, net 314,222 334,334 332,506 356,100 354,002 486,007
Machinery and equipment in trust 576,121 617,991 622,914 1,091,124 1,142,718 1,205,731
Accumulated depreciation (13,921) (28,449) (43,752) (67,624) (93,321) (121,137)
Machinery and equipment in trust, ne 562,200 589,542 579,161 1,023,499 1,049,397 1,084,594
Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust 4,286 8,049 23,882 36,977 61,618 65,463
Accumulated depreciation (189) (699) (1,943) (4,417) (8,702) (15,743)
Tools, furniture and fixtures in trust, net 4,096 7,350 21,939 32,560 52,916 49,720
Land in trust 136,258,287 144,250,646 146,717,786 179,363,166 186,823,468 219,073,983
Construction in progress in trust - 3,224 5,200 5,200 5,200 9,174

Total property, plant and equipment 167,155,259 177,815,442 180,454,715 227,359,913 237,869,985 278,747,775

Intangible assets

Leasehold rights in trust 4,265,157 4,487,617 4,562,599 4,562,599 4,562,628 4,562,628
Other 2,331 2,072 1,814 3,550 3,089 2,628
Total intangible assets 4,267,489 4,489,689 4,564,414 4,566,150 4,565,717 4,565,256
Investments and other assets
Long-term prepaid expenses 286,230 361,340 296,095 356,026 329,135 341,930
Securities deposited 9,930 9,942 9,955 9,967 9,979 9,992
Other - - - - - 3,794
Total investments and other assets 296,160 371,283 306,051 365,994 339,115 355,717
Total noncurrent assets 171,718,909 182,676,416 185,325,181 232,292,058 242,774,818 283,668,749
Deferred assets
Investment corporation bond issuance costs - - - 23,404 21,024 44,372
Total deferred assets - - - 23,404 21,024 44,372
Total assets 180,066,757 188,837,673 191,841,377 242,609,167 253,407,269 297,466,647




(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Nolh\\/ir(r)lfber A;lole(\)nlag Ncﬁlser%fber A;sz'glf X Ncﬁlser%fber A;lsz'\oﬂfg
30, 2012 ' 30, 2013 ' 30, 2014 '
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Operating accounts payable 287,850 340,229 330,353 431,447 582,927 687,543
Short-term loans payable 17,000,000 - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - -
Current portion of long-term loans payabl - 4,000,000 10,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,000 19,000,000
Accounts payable-other 304,544 49,078 46,700 64,636 42,874 112,013
Accrued expenses 424,963 220,466 245,470 315,924 375,920 402,760
Income taxes payable 834 495 538 674 383 258
Accrued consumption taxes - 33,490 173,647 - 116,971 —
Advances received 102,941 116,320 103,875 111,860 105,716 217,484
Deposits received 21,873 2,235 4,772 11,350 2,129 9,647
Other 21 - - 1 - 433
Total current liabilities 18,143,029 4,762,316 13,905,358 15,935,895 19,226,923 20,430,142
Noncurrent liabilities
Investment corporation bonds - - - 4,000,000 4,000,000 8,000,000
Long-term loans payable 60,000,000 81,000,000 75,000,000 81,800,000 88,800,000 100,100,000
Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust 7,688,827 8,223,028 8,375,764 10,820,768 11,294,108 13,583,386
Other 41 31 50 31 12 2
Total noncurrent liabilities 67,688,868 89,223,059 83,375,815 96,620,799 104,094,121 121,683,388
Total liabilities 85,831,897 93,985,376 97,281,173 112,556,695 123,321,044 142,113,530
Net assets
Unitholders’ equity
Unitholders’ capital 91,373,833 91,373,833 91,373,833 126,054,921 126,054,921 150,770,610
Surplus
Unappropriated retained earnings (undisposed loss) 2,861,026 3,478,463 3,186,370 3,997,550 4,031,303 4,582,505
Total surplus 2,861,026 3,478,463 3,186,370 3,997,550 4,031,303 4,582,505
Total unitholders’ equity 94,234,859 94,852,296 94,560,203 130,052,471 130,086,225 155,353,116
*2 *2 *2 *2 *2 *2

Total net assets 94234859 94,852,296 94,560,203 130,052,471 130,086,225 155,353,116

Total liabilities and net assets 180,066,757 188,837,673 191,841,377 242,609,167 253,407,269 297,466,647




(2) Statements of Operations

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Fiscal periods

(From
December
1, 2012 to

May 31,

2013)

(From
December
1, 2013 to

May 31,

2014)

(From
December
1, 2014 to

May 31,

2015)

(From June
1, 2012 to
November
30, 2012)

(From June
1, 2013 to
November
30, 2013)

(From June
1, 2014 to
November
30, 2014)

Operating revenue

*1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3
4,889,315 5,453,936 5,712,126 7,237,545 7,544,941 8,501,606

*1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3
305,296 349,567 412,776 541,200 630,009 619,027

Total operating revenue 5,194,612 5,803,503 6,124,902 7,778,746 8,174,951 9,120,633

Operating expenses

Rent revenue-real estate

Other lease business revenue

*1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3 *1,*3

Expenses related to rent business 1,278,245 1435773 1,975285 2,632,911 2,937.675 3,210,806

Loss on sales of real estate properties - - - 770;29 - -
Asset management fees 380,548 442,330 436,004 483,899 567,459 615,641
Asset custody fees 4,360 5,144 5,374 6,562 7,089 7,981
Administrative service fees 4,476 15,564 13,446 11,856 14,062 14,611
Directors’ compensation 3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300
Other operating expenses 25,650 49,765 49,339 52,584 51,359 68,984
Total operating expenses 1,696,580 1,951,879 2,482,749 3,198,214 3,580,945 3,921,326
Operating income 3,498,031 3,851,624 3,642,152 4,580,531 4,594,005 5,199,306
Non-operating income
Interest income 128 237 189 394 442 550
Interest on securities 1,410 2,003 1,848 1,744 1,787 3,083
Interest on refund - 3,407 - - 1,889 -
Insurance income - - 2,522 63 1,472 161
Total non-operating income 1,539 5,648 4,560 2,203 5,593 3,794
Non-operating expenses
Interest expenses 287,063 313,535 330,975 386,485 413,995 449,096
Interest expenses on investment corporation bot - - - 1,458 7,416 9,615
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance costs - - - 793 2,380 3,012
Investment unit issuance expenses 129,644 - 48,310 106,174 49,228 56,205
Other offering costs associated with the issuance of investment t 86,181 — — — — —
Borrowing related expenses 69,524 64,401 79,700 88,739 93,976 101,181
Other 4,000 - 500 520 593 500
Total non-operating expenses 576,413 377,936 459,486 584,173 567,590 619,611
Ordinary income 2,923,157 3,479,336 3,187,226 3,998,562 4,032,008 4,583,489
Income before income taxes 2,923,157 3,479,336 3,187,226 3,998,562 4,032,008 4,583,489
Income taxes-current 1,139 948 949 1,105 833 992
Income taxes-deferred (26) 9 0) 5) 11 6)
Total income taxes 1,113 957 949 1,099 845 985
Net income 2,922,043 3,478,378 3,186,276 3,997,462 4,031,162 4,582,504
Retained earnings (deficit) brought forward (61,017) 85 93 88 141 1

Unappropriated retained earnings (undisposed los: 2,861,026 3,478,463 3,186,370 3,997,550 4,031,303 4,582,505



(3) Statements of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity
2nd fiscal period (From June 1, 2012 to November 30, 2012)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Unitholders’ equity

Surplus
Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)

e ariaq, comming g 200,000 (61,017) (61,017) 138,982 138,982
Changes of items during
the period

Issuance of new

e 91,173,833 91,173,833 91,173,833

Net income 2,922,043 2,922,043 2,922,043 2,922,043
Total changes of items
during the period 91,173,833 2,922,043 2,922,043 94,095,877 94,095,877
Balance at the end of *1
curtent period 01373833 2861026 2,861,026 94234859 94,234,859

3rd fiscal period (From December 1, 2012 to May 31, 2013)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Unitholders’ equity

Surplus
Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)

Balance at the beginning g
current pariod 91,373,833 2,861,026 2,861,026 94,234,859 94,234,859
Changes of items during
the period

Dividends from surplus (2,860,941) (2,860,941) (2,860,941) (2,860,941

Net income 3,478,378 3,478,378 3,478,378 3,478,378
Total changes of items
during the soriod - 617,436 617,436 617,436 617,436

*

Balance at the end of ! 3,478,463 3478463 94,852,299 94,852,298

current period

91,373,833




4th fiscal period (From June 1, 2013 to November 30, 2013)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Unitholders’ equity

Surplus
Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)

Balance at the beginning d
curtent period 91,373,833 3,478,463 3,478,463 94,852,296 94,852,298
Changes of items during
the period

Dividends from surplus (3,478,369) (3,478,369) (3,478,369) (3,478,369

Net income 3,186,276 3,186,276 3,186,276 3,186,276
Total ch f it
during the poriod - (292,093) (292,093) (292,093) (292,093)
Balance at the end of *1
current period 01373833 31863700 3186370 94,560,203 94,560,203

5th fiscal period (From December 1, 2013 to May 31, 2014)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Unitholders’ equity

Surplus
Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)

Balance at the beginning g
curtent period 91,373,833  3,186,370]  3,186,370] 94,560,203 94,560,203
Changes of items during
the period

Issuance of new

oot et 34,681,088 34,681,084 34,681,088

Dividends from surplus (3,186,282) (3,186,282) (3,186,282) (3,186,282

Net income 3,997,462 3,997,462 3,997,462 3,997,462
Total changes of items
during the period 34,681,088 811,180 811,180 35,492,268 35,492,268
Balance at the end of *1
current period 126054021 3997550 3,997,550 130,052,471 130,052,471




6th fiscal period (From June 1, 2014 to November 30, 2014)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Unitholders’ equity

Surplus
Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)

Balance at the beginning d
curtent period 126,054,921 3,997,550  3,997,550| 130,052,471 130,052,471
Changes of items during
the period

Dividends from surplus (3,997,409) (3,997,409) (3,997,409) (3,997,409

Net income 4,031,162 4,031,162 4,031,162 4,031,162
Total changes of items
during the period - 33,753 33,753 33,753 33,753
Balance at the end of *1
current poriod 126054021 ~ 4031303 4,031,303 130,086,222 130,086,224

7th fiscal period (From December 1, 2014 to May 31, 2015)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Unitholders’ equity

Surplus
Unitholders’ Unappropriated Total unitholders’ Total net assets
capital retained earnings Total surplus equity
(undisposed loss)

Balance at the beginning
of current period 126,054,921  4,031,303] 4,031,303 130,086,225 130,086,225
Changes of items during
the period

Issuance of new

e 24,715,689 24,715,689 24,715,689

Dividends from surplus (4,031,302) (4,031,302) (4,031,302) (4,031,302

Net income 4,582,504 4,582,504 4,582,504 4,582,504
Total changes of items
during the period 24,715,689 551,201 551,201f 25,266,891 25,266,891
Balance at the end of *1
current period 15077061 4582509 4582505 155,353,116 155353116




(4) Statements of Cash Distributions

Fiscal periods

(From June 1,

(From December

(From June 1,

(From December

(From June 1,

(From December

2012 to 2013 to 2014 to
November 30, L g(l)lgécial\)/lay November 30, L g(l)lgécigay November 30, L g(l)lgécl);\)ﬂay
2012) ' 2013) ' 2014) '
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

Unappropriated
retained earning
(Undisposed
loss)
Distributions
[Cash
distribution per
unit]

Earnings carried
forward

¥2,861,026,757

¥2,860,941,75

¥[13,938]

¥85,001

¥3,478,463,414

b ¥3,478,369,857

¥ [16,946]

¥93,562

¥3,186,370,307

¥3,186,282,024

¥[15,523]

¥88,276

¥3,997,550,439

¥3,997,409,164

¥ [15,922]

¥141,275

¥4,031,303,72]

¥4,031,302,534

¥[16,057]

¥1,187

¥4,582,505,58]]

¥4,582,377,62(

¥[16,535]

¥127,961

Calculation method fof
distributions

Based on the
distribution
policy set forth in
Article 35,
Paragraph 1 of
the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation,
distributions shall
be limited to the
amount of profit
in excess of an
amount
equivalent to
ninety
hundredths
(90/100) of
distributable
profits, as
stipulated in
Article 67-15,
Paragraph 1 of
the Special
Taxation
Measures Act. In
consideration of
this policy, we
will pay
distributions at
the total amount
of
¥2,860,941,756,
which is the
amount that does
not exceed the
unappropriated
retained earnings
and is the
greatest value
among integral
multiples of
205,262, which is
the total number
of investment
units issued;
provided,
however, that we
will not pay the
portion of
amount that
exceeds the profi
defined in Article
35, Paragraph 2
of the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment

Based on the
distribution
policy set forth in
Article 35,
Paragraph 1 of
the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation,
distributions shall
be limited to the
amount of profit
in excess of an
amount
equivalent to
ninety
hundredths
(90/100) of
distributable
profits, as
stipulated in
Article 67-15,
Paragraph 1 of
the Special
Taxation
Measures Act. In
consideration of
this policy, we
will pay
distributions at
the total amount
of
¥3,478,369,852,
which is the
amount that does
not exceed the
unappropriated
retained earnings
and is the
greatest value
among integral
multiples of
205,262, which is
the total number
of investment
units issued;
provided,
however, that we
will not pay the
portion of
amount that
exceeds the profi
defined in Article
35, Paragraph 2
of the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment

Corporation.

Corporation.

Based on the
distribution
policy set forth in
Article 35,
Paragraph 1 of
the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation,
distributions shall
be limited to the
amount of profit
in excess of an
amount
equivalent to
ninety
hundredths
(90/100) of
distributable
profits, as
stipulated in
Article 67-15,
Paragraph 1 of
the Special
Taxation
Measures Act. In
consideration of
this policy, we
will pay
distributions at
the total amount
of
¥3,186,282,026,
which is the
amount that does
not exceed the
unappropriated
retained earnings
and is the
greatest value
among integral
multiples of
205,262, which is
the total number
of investment
units issued;
provided,
however, that we
will not pay the
portion of
amount that
exceeds the profi
defined in Article
35, Paragraph 2
of the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment

Corporation.

Based on the
distribution
policy set forth in
Article 35,
Paragraph 1 of
the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation,
distributions shall
be limited to the
amount of profit
in excess of an
amount
equivalent to
ninety
hundredths
(90/100) of
distributable
profits, as
stipulated in
Article 67-15,
Paragraph 1 of
the Special
Taxation
Measures Act. In
consideration of
this policy, we
will pay
distributions at
the total amount
of
¥3,997,409,164,
which is the
amount that does
not exceed the
unappropriated
retained earnings
and is the
greatest value
among integral
multiples of
251,062, which is
the total number
of investment
units issued;
provided,
however, that we
will not pay the
portion of
amount that
exceeds the profi
defined in Article
35, Paragraph 2
of the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment

Corporation.

Based on the
distribution
policy set forth in
Article 35,
Paragraph 1 of
the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation,
distributions shall
be limited to the
amount of profit
in excess of an
amount
equivalent to
ninety
hundredths
(90/100) of
distributable
profits, as
stipulated in
Article 67-15,
Paragraph 1 of
the Special
Taxation
Measures Act. In
consideration of
this policy, we
will pay
distributions at
the total amount
of
¥4,031,302,534,
which is the
amount that does
not exceed the
unappropriated
retained earnings
and is the
greatest value
among integral
multiples of
251,062, which is
the total number
of investment
units issued;
provided,
however, that we
will not pay the
portion of
amount that
exceeds the profi
defined in Article
35, Paragraph 2
of the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment

Corporation.

Based on the
distribution
policy set forth in
Article 35,
Paragraph 1 of
the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation,
distributions shall
be limited to the
amount of profit
in excess of an
amount
equivalent to
ninety
hundredths
(90/100) of
distributable
profits, as
stipulated in
Article 67-15,
Paragraph 1 of
the Special
Taxation
Measures Act. In
consideration of
this policy, we
will pay
distributions at
the total amount
of
¥4,582,377,620,
which is the
amount that does
not exceed the
unappropriated
retained earnings
and is the
greatest value
among integral
multiples of
277,132, which is
the total number
of investment
units issued;
provided,
however, that we
will not pay the
portion of
amount that
exceeds the profi
defined in Article
35, Paragraph 2
of the Articles of
Incorporation of
the Investment
Corporation.




(5) Statements of Cash Flows

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Fiscal periods

(From June 1, (From (From June (From (From June (From
2012 to December 1, 1, 2013 to December 1, 1, 2014 to December 1,
November 30, 2012to May November 2013toMay November 2014 to May
2012) 31, 2013) 30, 2013) 31, 2014) 30, 2014) 31, 2015)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Income before income taxes 2,923,157 3,479,336 3,187,226 3,998,562 4,032,008 4,583,489
Depreciation and amortization 452,298 488,241 518,685 739,644 763,242 887,319
Loss on retirement of noncurrent assets 5,230 2,746 555 4,426 115 -
Amortization of investment corporation bond issuance cost — — — 793 2,380 3,012
Interest income and interest on securities (1,539) (2,241) (2,038) (2,139) (2,230) (3,633)
Interest expenses 287,063 313,535 330,975 387,944 421,411 458,712
Investment unit issuance expenses 129,644 - 48,310 106,174 49,228 56,205
Borrowing related expenses 58,603 52,838 67,489 88,739 93,976 101,181
Decrease (increase) in operating accounts receiva (156,242) (21,974) (22,373) (103,650) (11,842) (37,850)
Decrease (increase) in consumption taxes refund receivab (1,446,329) 1,446,329 — (541,917) 541,917 (359,151)
Increase (decrease) in accrued consumption taxes - 33,490 140,157 (173,647) 116,971 (116,971)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (19,726) (69,997) 67,287 (108,049) 109,947 (112,469)
Decrease (increase) in advances paid 4,200 - - - - -
Decrease in sales of property, plant and equipment in trust — — — 692,998 — —
Increase (decrease) in operating accounts payable 238,935 35,856 7,060 98,507 72,950 29,815
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 420,735 (214,740) (22,501) 47,221 9,030 37,420
Increase (decrease) in advances received 102,941 13,378 (12,444) 7,984 (6,144) 111,768
Decrease (increase) in long-term prepaid expense (13,204) 2,334 4,633 4,224 350 (357)
Other, net 21,290 (19,668) 2,429 6,335 (8,889) 6,395
Subtotal 3,007,057 5,539,465 4,315,454 5,254,154 6,184,423 5,644,887
Interest income received 1,529 2,228 2,026 2,126 2,218 3,621
Interest expenses paid (285,382) (303,292) (330,722) (329,717) (417,839) (423,776)
Income taxes paid (494) (1,286) (907) (970) (1,124) (1,117)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,722,709 5,237,115 3,985,850 4,925,593 5,767,677 5,223,614

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment in trust  (167,259,077) (11,403,309)  (3,182,161) (48,323,518) (11,215,077) (41,620,986)

Purchase of intangible assets (2,582) - - - - -
Purchase of intangible assets in trust (4,265,157) (222,459) (74,982) - (2,056) -
Repayments of tenant leasehold and security depc (23,086) (231,159) (129,626) (339,594) (77,350) (130,157)
Proceeds from tenant leasehold and security depo 7,711,913 765,360 282,363 2,784,598 550,690 2,419,435
Other, net - - - - - (3,794)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activites ~ (163,837,990) (11,091,568)  (3,104,407) (45,878,514) (10,743,793) (39,335,503)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Increase in short-term loans payable 17,000,000 - 2,997,375 - 10,000,000 4,000,000
Decrease in short-term loans payable - (17,000,000) - —  (13,000,000)  (4,000,000)
Proceeds from long-term loans payable 59,578,500 24,827,100 - 12,645,800 18,939,062 18,194,908
Decrease in long-term loans payable - - - (4,000,000) (6,000,000) (6,000,000)
Proceeds from issuance of investment corporation bonds — — — 3,978,087 — 3,975,840
Proceeds from issuance of investment units 91,044,188 - - 34,527,660 - 24,610,255
Dividends paid - (2,847,488) (3,473,778) (3,186,247) (3,996,503)  (4,031,023)
Other, net - - (1,058) (2,218) (15,179) (12,776)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 167,622,688 4,979,611 (477,461) 43,963,082 5,927,379 36,737,204

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 6,507,407 (874,841) 403,981 3,010,160 951,264 2,625,315
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 127,194 6,634,602 5,759,761 6,163,742 9,173,903 10,125,167
*1 *1 *1 *1 *1 *1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6,634,602 5759761 6,163,742 9,173,903 10,125,167 12,750,483




Notes to financial statements
(6) Notes on Assumption of Going Concern

Not applicable

(7) Notes on Important Accounting Policies

1. Valuation basis and|Held-to-maturity bonds
method for securities  The amortized cost method (straight-line method) is used.

2. Method of (1) Property, plant and equipment (including trust assets)
depreciation of The straight-line method is used.
noncurrent assets The useful lives of major property, plant and equipment are listed belpw.
Buildings 2 to 70 years
Structures 2 to 60 years
Machinery and equipment 2 to 33 years
Tools, furniture and fixtures 2 to 15 years

(2) Intangible assets

Internal use software is amortized by the straight-line method over th
expected useful life (5 years).

(3) Long-term prepaid expenses
The straight-line method is used.

D

3. Accounting method| (1) Investment unit issuance expenses

for deferred assets The full amount is recorded as expenses at the time of expenditure.
(2) Investment corporation bond issuance costs

Amortized by the straight-line method over the period until maturity.

4. Accounting for Property-related taxes
income and expenses  For property tax, city planning tax, depreciable asset tax for real properties

held, the amount of tax levied corresponding to the calculation period is

recorded as expenses related to rent business.

The settlement money for property tax that is paid to the transferor for
acquisition of real properties (so-called “amount equivalent to property
tax”) is not recorded as expenses related to rent business but includgd in
the acquisition costs for the related properties. Taxes on property, plant
and equipment capitalized as part of the acquisition cost of propertie$
amounted to ¥456,323 thousand, ¥64,888 thousand, ¥4,906 thousand,
¥77,519 thousand and ¥123,880 thousand for the fiscal periods endgd
November 30, 2012, May 31, 2013, November 30, 2013, May 31, 2014
and May 31, 2015, respectively. For the fiscal period ended Novembér 30,
2014, no taxes on property, plant and equipment were capitalized.

5. Method of hedge (1) Method of hedge accounting
accounting For interest rate swaps, special treatment is applied since the swaps
satisfy the requirements for special treatment.

(2) Hedging instruments and hedged items
Hedging instruments: Interest rate swaps transactions
Hedged items: Long-term loans payable

(3) Hedging policy
Based on the management policy of financial market risks, the Invesiment
Corporation makes interest rate swaps for the purpose to hedge rigks set
forth in the Articles of Incorporation of the Investment Corporation.

(4) Method of assessing hedge effectiveness
The Investment Corporation assesses hedge effectiveness by ensuring the
fulfillment of the requirements of special treatment.
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6. Scope of cash (cashCash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in trust, demand
and cash equivalentsgjeposits, deposits in trust, and highly liquid short-term investments that are
in the statements of | readily convertible, bear little risk in price fluctuations, and mature within|
cash flows three months of the date of acquisition.

7. Other important (1) Accounting method for trust beneficiary right with real estate, etc. as trust
matters related to the  asset
preparation of With regard to trust beneficiary right with real estate, etc. in holding as
financial statements|  trust asset, all assets and liabilities as well as all revenue and expense items
associated with all trust assets are accounted for under the respective
account items of the balance sheets and statements of operations.
Of the trust assets accounted for under the respective account items, the
following items with significance are separately indicated on the balance
sheets.

i) Cash and deposits in trust

i) Buildings in trust; structures in trust; machinery and equipment in
trust; tools, furniture and fixtures in trust; land in trust; constructign in
progress in trust; and leasehold rights in trust

iii) Tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust

(2) Accounting method for consumption tax and local consumption tax
Consumption tax and local consumption tax are accounted for by the|tax-
exclusion method. Consumption taxes unqualified for deduction for tax
purposes for noncurrent assets, etc. are included in acquisition cost for
each asset.

(8) Notes to Financial Statements
Notes to Balance Sheets
1. Commitment Line Contracts

The Investment Corporation has the commitment line contracts with four of the banks (one of the banks for
the fiscal periods ended November 30, 2012 and May 31, 2013).

As of As of As of

November 30, As of May 31, November 30, As of May 31, November 30, As of May 31,
2012 2013 2013 2014 2014 2015
Total amount specified in  ¥10,000,000 ¥10,000,000 ¥10,000,000 ¥10,000,000 ¥12,000,000 ¥12,000,000
the commitment line thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
contracts
Loan balance - - - - - -
Net balance ¥10,000,000 ¥10,000,000 ¥10,000,000 ¥10,000,000 ¥12,000,000 ¥12,000,000
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand

*2. Minimum Net Assets Stipulated in Article 67, Paragraph 4 of the Act on Investment Trusts and
Investment Corporations

As of As of As of
November 30, *° o;g/llzy 3L November3o, /S Ogg/lliy 3L November3o, /S Ogg/llzy 3L,
2012 2013 2014
¥50,000 ¥50,000 ¥50,000 ¥50,000 ¥50,000 ¥50,000

thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand



Notes to Statements of Operations
*1. Breakdown of Income from Real Estate Leasing Business

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Fiscal periods

(From June 1, 2012 (From December 1,
to November 30, 2012 to May 31,
2012) 2013)

(From June 1, 2013 (From December 1,
to November 30, 2013 to May 31,
2013) 2014)

(From June 1, 2014 (From December 1,
to November 30, 2014 to May 31,
2014) 2015)

A Real estate leasing
business revenues
Rent revenue—real
estate

Rent
Common service fees
Parking lot fees

Other rent revenue

4,449,798
325,961
77,849

35,705

4,946,608
373,661
93,053

4,889,315 40,613

5,453,936

5,197,037
377,139
98,275

39,673

6,619,646
429,060
142,732

5,712,126 46,105

6,945,300
402,113
146,907

7,237,545 50,619

7,761,778
515,023
162,233

7,544,941 62,570

8,501,606

Other lease business

305,296

349,567

412,776

541,200

630,009

619,027

revenue
Total real estate leasing
business revenues
B Real estate leasing
business expenses
Expenses related to
rent business
Management
operation expenses

5,194,612 5,803,503 6,124,902 7,778,746 8,174,951 9,120,633

343,672 411,855 425,239 638,757 693,503 825,110

Utilities expenses 272,691 288,930 371,251 524,265 593,991 627,789

Tax and public dues - 10,265 433,411 457,189 575,707 578,744

Insurance 4,306 4,962 5,277 7,211 7,426 8,720

Repair and
maintenance
expenses

Depreciation

108,170 97,004 71,060 114,693 142,813 118,075

452,047 487,983 518,426 739,386 762,984 887,061

Loss on retirement
of noncurrent assets
Other expenses
related to rent
business
Total real estate leasing
business expenses
Income from real estate
leasing business (A —
B)

5,230 2,746 555 4,426 115 -

92,126 1,278,245 132,024 1,435,773 150,061 1,975,285 146,980 2,632,911 161,132 2,937,675 165,304 3,210,806

1,278,245 1,435,773 1,975,285 2,632,911 2,937,675 3,210,806

3,916,367 4,367,729 4,149,617 5,145,835 5,237,275 5,909,826

*2. Breakdown of Gain (Loss) on Sales of Real Estate Properties

(As of November 30, 2012)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2013)
Not applicable

(As of November 30, 2013)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2014)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Tokyo Kikai Honsha Building (Building)

Income from sales of real estate properties 695,000
Costs of sales of real estate properties 692,998
Other costs of sales 9,101
Loss on sales of real estate properties 7,099
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(As of November 30, 2014)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2015)
Not applicable

*3. Transactions with Major Unitholders

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Fiscal periods

(From June 1, (From (From June (From (From June (From
2012 to December 1, 1,2013to Decemberl, 1,2014to December 1,

November 30, 2012toMay November 2013toMay November 2014 to May
2012) 31, 2013) 30, 2013) 31, 2014) 30, 2014) 31, 2015)

Operating transactions

Rent revenue—real estate
Other lease business

4,191,200 4,706,243 4,926,245 5,470,711 5,458,629 4,410,535

e e 273,876 315980 351,734 393,854 437,394 383,534
Dxpenseselatedtorent 218,363 256,607 255,524 296,465 286,118 315421

Notes to Statements of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity

*1 Total number of authorized investment units and total number of investment units issued are as follows:

Fiscal periods
(From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From

2012 to December 1, 2013 to December 1, 2014 to December 1,
November | 2012 to May November 2013 to May November | 2014 to May

30, 2012) 31, 2013) 30, 2013) 31, 2014) 30, 2014) 31, 2015)
Total number of authorizegd 2,000,000( 2,000,000, 2,000,000f 2,000,000, 2,000,000 2,000,000
investment units units units units units units units
Total number of 205,262 205,262 205,262 251,062 251,062 277,132
investment units issued units units units units units units

Notes to Statements of Cash Flows

*1 Reconciliation between Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period and the Amount on the Balance
Sheets

Fiscal periods

(From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From
2012 to December 1, 2013 to December 1, 2014 to December 1,
November 2012 to May November 2013 to May November 2014 to May
30, 2012) 31, 2013) 30, 2013) 31, 2014) 30, 2014) 31, 2015)

Cash and deposits ¥5,586,163 ¥4,707,652 ¥5,016,162 ¥7,702,411 ¥8,585,158 ¥9,743,232
P thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand

Cash and deposits in trust ¥1,048,439 ¥1,052,109 ¥1,147,579 ¥1,471,491 ¥1,540,009 ¥3,007,251
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
Cash and cash equivalents ¥6,634,602 ¥5,759,761 ¥6,163,742 ¥9,173,903 ¥10,125,167 ¥12,750,483
q thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand




Notes to Lease Rental Revenues

The Investment Corporation leases properties on which rental revenues are earned. As of November 30, 2012,
May 31, 2013, November 30, 2013, May 31, 2014, November 30, 2014 and May 31, 2015, future lease
revenues under non-cancelable operating leases are summarized as follows:

As of As of As of
November gslole(\)/lfg November A;lole(\)llle November
30, 2012 ' 30, 2013 ' 30, 2014

¥7,924,244 ¥8,155,084 ¥8,404,903 ¥8,917,642 ¥9,378,318 ¥10,339,469
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand

¥57,712,852 ¥54,192,670 ¥50,701,479 ¥52,733,613 ¥49,090,973 ¥50,880,545
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand

As of May
31, 2015

Due within one year

Due after one year

¥65,637,096 ¥62,347,754 ¥59,106,382 ¥61,651,256 ¥58,469,291 ¥61,220,014

Total thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand

Notes on Financial Instruments
1. Matters Regarding Financial Instruments
(1) Policy for Financial Instruments

The Investment Corporation raises funds by borrowing, issuing investment corporation bonds, or issuing
investment units for the purpose of acquiring real estate-related assets and repaying interest-bearing debt.

When raising funds, the Investment Corporation aims to sustain stable fund-raising capability for a long
time at low cost by enhancing its capital adequacy and maintaining conservative interest-bearing debt,
looking for attributes such as extended borrowing periods for interest-bearing debt, fixed interest rates,
and diversified due dates to ensure financial stability and avoid the risk of interest-rate hikes.

The Investment Corporation also invests temporary excess funds in deposits in general, taking safety and
liquidity, etc. into account and considering the interest-rate environment and its cash management.

The Investment Corporation may carry out derivatives transactions for the purpose of hedging the interest-
rate risk of borrowings and other risks, but does not engage in speculative transactions.

(2) Content and Risks of Financial Instruments and Risk Management System

As the excess funds of the Investment Corporation are invested in deposits, they are exposed to credit
risks such as the insolvency of the financial institutions in which the excess funds are deposited. However,
The Investment Corporation deposits excess funds carefully by limiting the period of deposits to the short
term, taking safety and liquidity, etc. into account and considering the financial environment and its cash
management.

Borrowings and investment corporation bond are received mainly for the purpose of acquiring real estate
and refinancing of existing borrowings. Tenant leasehold and security deposits are deposits provided by
tenants. Borrowings, investment corporation bond, tenant leasehold and security deposits are exposed to
liquidity risks at the time of repayments. However, these risks are managed through management of
liquidity in hand by preparing a monthly funding plan, efforts to reduce liquidity risk on loans payable

and investment corporation bond by diversifying repayment periods, etc., and other means.

Floating-rate loans payable are also exposed to the risk of fluctuations in interest-rates. However, these
risks are managed through derivative transactions (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments in certain
floating-rate loans payable.

(3) Supplemental Remarks on the Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is based on market prices or reasonably calculated value if it has no
market price. As certain assumptions are made in calculating these values, if different assumptions, etc.
are used, these values could vary.



2. Matters Regarding Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of November 30, 2012, are as
shown below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine
are not included in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and deposits 5,586,163 5,586,163 -
(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1,048,439 1,048,439 -
Total assets 6,634,602 6,634,602 —
(1) Short-term loans payable 17,000,000 17,000,000 -
(4) Long-term loans payable 60,000,000 60,345,213 345,213
Total liabilities 77,000,000 77,345,213 345,213

Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of May 31, 2013, are as shown
below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine are not
included in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and deposits 4,707,652 4,707,652 —

(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1,052,109 1,052,109 —

Total assets 5,759,761 5,759,761 —

(2) lg:gfg;‘;’lgg:g” of long-term 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
(4) Long-term loans payable 81,000,000 80,714,493 (285,506)
Total liabilities 85,000,000 84,714,493 (285,506)

Derivative transactions — — —

Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of November 30, 2013, are as
shown below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine
are not included in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and deposits 5,016,162 5,016,162 —

(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1,147,579 1,147,579 —

Total assets 6,163,742 6,163,742 —

(1) Short-term loans payable 3,000,000 3,000,000 —

(2) ﬁ;’ﬁfg;ﬁggfé’” of long-term 10,000,000 10,000,000 -
(4) Long-term loans payable 75,000,000 75,196,047 196,047
Total liabilities 88,000,000 88,196,047 196,047

Derivative transactions — — —




Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of May 31, 2014, are as shown
below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine are not
included in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and deposits 7,702,411 7,702,411 —

(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1,471,491 1,471,491 —

Total assets 9,173,903 9,173,903 —

() Short-term loans payable 3,000,000 3,000,000 —

(2) |S;rr§g;5§g||gn of long-term 12,000,000 12,000,000 -

(3) Investment corporation bonds 4,000,000 4,000,000 —
(4) Long-term loans payable 81,800,000 82,215,990 415,990
Total liabilities 100,800,000 101,215,990 415,990

Derivative transactions — — —

Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of November 30, 2014, are as
shown below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine

are not included in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference
(1) Cash and deposits 8,585,158 8,585,158 —
(2) Cash and deposits in trust 1,540,009 1,540,009 —
Total assets 10,125,167 10,125,167 —
@) ﬁ;’;f;;ﬁgﬁ'é’” of long-term 18,000,000 18,027,930 27,930
(3) Investment corporation bondjs 4,000,000 4,022,063 22,063
(4) Long-term loans payable 88,800,000 89,766,861 966,861
Total liabilities 110,800,000 111,816,856 1,016,856
Derivative transactions — — —

Carrying amounts, fair values, and the differences between the two values as of May 31, 2015, are as shown
below. Financial instruments whose fair value is considered to be extremely difficult to determine are not

included in this table (please refer to (Note 2)).

Unit: Thousands of yen)

Carrying amount Fair value Difference

(1) Cash and deposits 9,743,232 9,743,232 —

(2) Cash and deposits in trust 3,007,251 3,007,251 —

Total assets 12,750,483 12,750,483 —

(2) Ig’;‘;;eggsggl'g” of long-term 19,000,000 19,004,282 4,282
(3) Investment corporation bondjs 8,000,000 8,005,561 5,561
(4) Long-term loans payable 100,100,000 101,047,721 947,721
Total liabilities 127,100,000 128,057,565 957,565

Derivative transactions




(Note 1) Measurement Methods for Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Assets
(1) Cash and deposits, (2) Cash and deposits in trust

The book value is used as the fair value of these assets, given that the fair value is almost the same as
the book value, as it is settled in a short time.

Liabilities
(1) Short-term loans payable

The book value is used as the fair value of these liabilities, given that the fair value is almost the same
as the book value, as it is settled in a short time.

(2) Current portion of long-term loans payable, (4) Long-term loans payable

These fair values are determined by discounting the total of principal and interest at the rate assumed
when a new loan is made corresponding to the remaining period. The book value is used as the fair
value of those loans payable with floating interest rates, given that the fair value is almost the same as
the book value, as their interest rates are reviewed on a short-term interval to reflect market interest
rates (however, for long-term loans payable with floating interest rates to which special treatment for
interest rate swaps is applied, the fair value is the value calculated by discounting the sum of principal
and interest, which are treated in combination with the said interest rate swap, at a reasonable rate
estimated for a similar new loan).

(3) Investment corporation bonds

The fair value is determined by discounting the total of principal and interest at a rate taking into
account the remaining period and credit risk of the said investment corporation bonds.

Derivative transactions
Please refer to “Notes on Derivative Transactions.”

(Note 2) Carrying Amounts of Financial Instruments Where Fair Value Is Considered to Be Extremely

Difficult to Determine

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

As of November| As of May 31, | As of November| As of May 31, |As of Novembe| As of May 31,
Category 30, 2012 2013 30, 2013 2014 30, 2014 2015
Tenant leasehold and
security deposits in trugt 7,688,82Y 8,223,028 8,375,764 10,820,768 11,294,108 13,583,386
*1

*1 As there are no market prices for tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust from tenants for
leasehold properties and the actual period of deposit from move-in of the tenant to move-out is
difficult to determine, it is extremely difficult to reasonably estimate the cash flow. Therefore, the fair
value for tenant leasehold and security deposits in trust is not subject to the disclosure of fair value.

(Note 3) Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (November

30, 2012)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
\ivggi;r 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3—4 years| 4-5 years 5?/\:::8
Deposits 5,586,163 - - - - _
Deposits in trust 1,048,439 - - - - -
Total 6,634,607 - - - - -




Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (May 31,

2013)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
\i\/i;gi;r 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4 years| 4-5 years 5(2/\2323
Deposits 4,707,654 — — — — —
Deposits in trust 1,052,109 — — — — —
Total 5,759,761 — — — — -

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (November

30, 2013)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
\ivggi;r 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4 years| 4-5 years SC;/\éjrs
Deposits 5,016,162 - - - - _
Deposits in trust 1,147,579 - - - - -
Total 6,163,747 - - — - _

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (May 31,

2014)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
\ivggi;r 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4 years| 4-5 years SC;/\éjrs
Deposits 7,702,411 — — — — —
Deposits in trust 1,471,491 — — — — —
Total 9,173,903 — — — — —

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (November

30, 2014)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Vlvggi;r 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3—4 years| 4-5 years 5(2/\(/3(;5
Deposits 8,585,158 — — — — —
Deposits in trust 1,540,009 — — — — —
Total 10,125,16Y - - - - -

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Monetary Claims after the Account Closing Date (May 31,

2015)
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
\1\/322 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3—4 years| 4-5 years 5?/\c/aearrs
Deposits 9,743,237 — — — — —
Deposits in trust 3,007,251 — — — — —
Total 12,750,488 — — — — —




(Note 4) Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable after the Account Closing Date (November
30, 2012)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within Over
1 year 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4 years| 4-5 years 5 years

Short-term loans payable 17,000,00( - -

Long-term loans payable -| 6,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,00(

Total 17,000,000 6,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,00(

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable after the Account Closing Date (May 31,
2013)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within Over
1 year 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4 years| 4-5 years 5 years

Long-term loans payable 4,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,000 17,000,000 22,000,00(

Total 4,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,000 17,000,000 22,000,00(

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable after the Account Closing Date (November 30,
2013)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3—4 years| 4-5 years Over 5
year years

Short-term loans payable 3,000,00( -

Long-term loans payable 10,000,000 18,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,00¢ 17,000,000 10,000,00(

Total 13,000,000 18,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,000 17,000,000 10,000,00(

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable and Investment Corporation Bonds after the
Account Closing Date (May 31, 2014)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4years| 4-5 years Over 5
year years

Short-term loans payable 3,000,00( -

Investment corporation bond

[
|
|

- —| 4,000,000 -

Long-term loans payable 12,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,00( 17,000,000 16,000,000 18,800,00(

Total 15,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,000 17,000,000 20,000,000 18,800,00(




Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable and Investment Corporation Bonds after the
Account Closing Date (November 30, 2014)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3-4years| 4-5 years Over 5
year years

Investment corporation bond

)
|

- - —| 4,000,000 -

Long-term loans payable 18,000,000 19,000,000 24,000,000 17,000,000 13,000,000 15,800,00(

Total 18,000,000 19,000,000 24,000,000 17,000,000 17,000,000 15,800,00(

Expected Amounts of Repayment of Loans Payable and Investment Corporation Bonds after the
Account Closing Date (May 31, 2015)

(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Within 1 1-2 years| 2-3 years| 3—-4 years| 4-5 years Over5
year years

Investment corporation bond

[
|

- —| 4,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Long-term loans payable 19,000,000 24,000,000 20,900,000 18,500,000 18,000,000 18,700,00(

Total 19,000,000 24,000,000 20,900,000 22,500,000 20,000,000 20,700,00(
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Notes on Derivative Transactions

1. Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting is not applied

(As of November 30, 2012)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2013)
Not applicable

(As of November 30, 2013)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2014)
Not applicable

(As of November 30, 2014)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2015)
Not applicable

2. Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting is applied

(As of November 30, 2012)
Not applicable

(As of May 31, 2013)

The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the

account closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

dTy_pe (.)f Major hedge Calculation
. erivative : . .
Hedge accounting . items Amount of contract Fair valugmethod for fair
transactions
value
Portion due
after one
year
Special Interest rate
treatment for swaps Long-term 5.000,000] 5,000,000 * _
interest rate | Receive floating|loans payable
swaps Pay fixed

* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral
part of long-term loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of
long-term loans payable. (Please refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities(4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values of

Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial Instruments.”)
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(As of November 30, 2013)
The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the
account closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Ty_pe Qf Major hedge Calculation
. derivative . . .
Hedge accounting : items Amount of contract Fair valugmethod for faif
transactions
value
Portion due
after one
year
Special Interest rate
treatment for swaps Long-term 5.000,000] 5,000,000 . _
interest rate | Receive floating|loans payable
swaps Pay fixed

* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral
part of long-term loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of
long-term loans payable. (Please refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities (4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values

of Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial Instruments.”)

(As of May 31, 2014)
The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the
account closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Ty_pe Qf Major hedge Calculation
. derivative - . .
Hedge accounting . items Amount of contract Fair valuemethod for faif
transactions
value
Portion dus
after one
year
Special Interest rate
t_reatment for swaps Long-term 5.000,000] 5,000,000 . _
interest rate | Receive floating|loans payable
swaps Pay fixed

* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral
part of long-term loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of
long-term loans payable. (Please refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities (4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values
of Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial Instruments.”)

(As of November 30, 2014)
The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the
account closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Ty'pe Qf Major hedge Calculation
. derivative . . .
Hedge accounting . items Amount of contract Fair valugmethod for fair
transactions
value
Portion due
after one
year
Special Interest rate
treatment for swaps Long-term 5,000,000 5,000,000 . _
interest rate | Receive floating|loans payable
swaps Pay fixed
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* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral
part of long-term loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of
long-term loans payable. (Please refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities (4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values
of Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial Instruments.”)

(As of May 31, 2015)
The following table shows contract amount or principal amount, etc. set forth in the contract as of the
account closing date by method of hedge accounting.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

dTy_pe (.)f Major hedge Calculation
. erivative : . .
Hedge accounting . items Amount of contract Fair valugmethod for fair
transactions
value
Portion due
after one
year
Special Interest rate
treatment for swaps Long-term 5,000,000 5,000,000 * _
interest rate | Receive floating|loans payable
swaps Pay fixed

* Interest rate swap transactions to which special treatment is applied are accounted for as an integral
part of long-term loans payable, a hedged item. Thus, their fair values are included in the fair value of
long-term loans payable. (Please refer to “(Note 1) Liabilities (4), 2. Matters Regarding Fair Values
of Financial Instruments, Notes on Financial Instruments.”)

Notes on Deferred Tax Accounting

1. Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

As of As of As of
November A;lole\olllagl November Agslole\olllaz/ November A;lofzhoﬂlzag
30, 2012 ' 30, 2013 ' 30, 2014 '
Deferred tax assets
tax Pup bl P thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
payable
Total deferred tax assets ¥26 ¥16 ¥16 ¥22 ¥11 ¥17
thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand
¥26 ¥16 ¥16 ¥22 ¥11 ¥17

Net defi dt t
et deferred tax assets thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand thousand

2. Reconciliation of Significant Difference between Effective Statutory Tax Rate and Effective Income Tax
Rate after Application of Deferred Tax Accounting

As of As of As of
November Agslole\ollfg November A;;S;Lszl\oAfZ November A;f;glfsy
30, 2012 ' 30, 2013 ' 30, 2014 '

Effective statutory tax rate 36.59% 36.59% 36.59% 36.59% 34.16% 34.15%
(Adjustments)

Distributions paid included - 35 81)06  (36.58)% (36.58)% (36.58)% (34.15)% (34.14)%

Other (0.74)% 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.01%
Effective income tax rate after
application of tax effect 0.04% 0.03% 0.03% 0.03% 0.02% 0.02%

accounting
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3. Tax Rate Change in Line with Revision to Income Taxes

The “Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 9 of 2015) was promulgated on March
31, 2015, and the tax rates for income taxes were revised from the fiscal period beginning on or after April
1, 2015. In conjunction with this, the effective statutory tax rate used to calculate deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities for the current fiscal period was changed to 32.31% from the previous tax rate of
34.15%. The impact of this change is immaterial.
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Notes on Transactions with Related Parties

1. Parent Company and Major Corporate Unitholders
2nd fiscal period (From June 1, 2012 to November 30, 2012)

Capital Percentag Relationship
stock or of voting | |nterlock Transactio lI)Enlding
) investmen{Business of ~ . - °| Business . amount | Account alance
Attribute|  Name Address | 5, capital | occupation| or\;\?:i;s Ing relation- Transaction (Thousand$ title  [(Thousandp
(Millions (owneg) officers, ship of yen) of yen)
of yen) etc.
Purchase of
beneficiary 6443700 _ _
rights of real e
estate in trust
Acceptance of
tenant
leasehold and| 2,896,924
security
deposits
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and| 5,757,583Tenant
security leasehold
Major  |2SPOSItS and | 590,20
21-2 unitholder|Receipt of security
Major Tokyu Land| Dogenzaka Real estatq and rent | fenant ﬂﬁg? ste i
unit- Corporation 1-chome, 57,551 inees 10.479% None |and leasehold and| 6,271,854
holder Shibuya-ku, manage- |Security
Tokyo ment of |deposits
properties|Repaymets of]
tenant
leasehold and| 23,084
security
deposits
Operating
accounts 144,544
Rental 4.465.07receivable
revenues, etc, ! ! Advances
received 102,913
consignment Operating
f 218,314accounts 38,409
or real estate
payable
management
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3rd fiscal period (From December 1, 2012 to May 31, 2013)

Capital Relationship
stock or Poefrsgtri]rt%g Interlock Transactio Ending
i i nterlock- .
Attribute]  Name Address | mVestmenfBusiness o rights in Business| Transaction amount | Account | balance A
in capital | occupation ownin ng relation- (Thousands title  [(Thousandp
(Millions (owneg) officers, ship of yen) of yen)
of yen) etc.
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and| 621,227
security
deposits
- Tenant
Receipt of leasehold
tenant and
leasehold and| 765,36( security 7,124,40
) security deposits in
Major deposits trust
21-2 unitholder Repayments
Major Dogenzaka and rent
.~ |Tokyu Land Real estate 0 tenant
unit- Corporation 1-chome, 57,551, ciness 10.47%4 None |and leasehold and| 231,154
holder Shibuya-ku, manage- |security
Tokyo ment of | geposits
properties Operating
Rental accounts 166,319
enta receivable
revenues, etc. 5’022’23“Ad
vances| 116,28
received
o e
9 256,597accounts 62,854
for real estate avable
management pay
4th fiscal period (From June 1, 2013 to November 30, 2013)
Capital stocK Percentag Relationship Transaction Endin
. orinvestmen g iness o ©f VoUNg | interlock- . amount | Account balanc?e
Attribute Name Address in capital - rights in Business| Transaction )
P occupatior] ] Ing S 3 (Thousands title (Thousandp
(Millions of owning | officers, [relationshi of yen) of yen)
yen) (owned) | etc.
Receipt of
tenant leasehol Tenant
N 155,194
and security " lleasehold
deposits and e
Repayments of security T
: tenant leasehol deposits
Major N 129,624.
21-2 unitholder, znd sgtcunty in trust
Major Tokvu Land Dogenzaka 1- Real estatd and rent eposits
unit- Coryoraﬁon chome, 57,551 oC oo 10.47% None |and Operating
holder p Shibuya-ku, manage- accounts 184,664
Tokyo mentof |Rental ) 5.277,98(receivable
ies |revenues, etc. ’
properties Advances 108,610
received T
Fees for .
. Operating
consignment 254,703accounts 50,042
for real estate avable
management pay
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5th fiscal period (From December 1, 2013 to May 31, 2014)

Attribute

Name

Address

Capital
stock or
investmen
in capital
(Millions
of yen)

Business o
occupation|

Percentag
of voting
rights
owning
(owned)

Relationship

Interlock-
ing
officers,
etc.

Business
relation-
ship

Transaction

Transactio
amount
(Thousand
of yen)

Account
title

Ending

balance
(Thousand

of yen)

U7

Major
unit-
holder

Tokyu Land
Corporation|

21-2
Dogenzaka 1
chome,
Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo

57,551

Real estatq
business

10.38%

None

Major
unitholder
and rent
and
manage-
ment of
properties

Purchase of
beneficiary
rights of real
estate in trust

17,890,00

Sales of
beneficiary
interests of
real estate in
trust

695,00(

Acceptance of
tenant
leasehold and|
security
deposits

972,32

Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and|
security
deposits

612,744

Receipt of
tenant
leasehold and
security
deposits

740,651

Repayments d
tenant
leasehold and|
security
deposits

129,244

Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and
security
deposits due {
sale

181,174

Tenant
leasehold
and
security
deposits in
trust

7,580,20

Rental
revenues, etc|

5,864,56¢

Operating
accounts
receivable

225,964

Advances
received

111,467

Fees for
consignment
for real estate
management

295,564

Operating
accounts
payable

61,614
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6th fiscal period (From June 1, 2014 to November 30, 2014)

Capital Relationship
stock or Poefrsgtri]rt]zg Interlock Transactio Ending
i i nterlock-
Attribute]  Name Address | mVestmenfBusiness o rights ing Business| Transaction amount | Account | balance A
|ng§pnal occupatior owning | officers relation- (Thousands title  [(Thousandp
(I;/Iflll/lgz)s (owned) etc. ’ ship of yen) of yen)
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and| 430,841
security
deposits
- Tenant
Ei(;?ft of leasehold
leasehold and| 51442829 | 620353
security Zecu”?y .
Major deposits me;z;)sns N
Mai él‘z a1 ungholdter Repayments g
ajor ogenzaka and rent |, t
- |Tokyu Land| Real estatq enan
unit- |~ Sration €home 57,551, ciness 10.38%4 None |and leasehold and| 1,891,084
hold P Shibuya-k i
older ibuya-ku, manage- |security
Tokyo ment of | geposits
properties -
Operating
accounts 222,537
iigtr?tzes etc| 589602 receivable
Advgnces 105,261
received
Fees for .
. Operating
consighment | 286,524accounts | 60,188
management payable
7th fiscal period (From December 1, 2014 to May 31, 2015)
Capital Percental Relationship
stock or ofvotingg nterlock Transactio Ending
! investmen{Business o . nterlock- g siness . amount | Account | balance
Attribute} - Name Address | 5, capital | occupatiory or\l/\?r:;sg offlizge]rs relation- Transaction (Thousand$ title  [(Thousandp
e oune | ™| s ofer fer)
Purchase of
beneficiary 4.820.00 _ a
rights of real e
estate in trust
Acceptance of
tenant
leasehold and| 322,864
security
deposits
- Tenant
Eig?ftOf leasehold
Major [leaseholdand| 618522279 | 672148
21-2 unitholder]security 32([:)[:)22/5 in
Major Dogenzaka 1 and rent [deposits
d Tokyu Land Real estatq o trust
hunlt- Corporation| Chc.)me’ 57,551 business 10.35%  None jand Repayments d
older Shibuya-ku, manage- |, -
Tokyo mentof leasehold and 100,574
properties security
deposits
Operating
accounts 224,256
Fe?/gtr?&es etc 4,794,07¢recelvable
T Advances )y
received 108,952
Fees for .
. Operating
consignment | 312:34%accounts | 105,09¢
management payable

(Note 1) Of the amounts above, the transaction amount does not include consumption taxes, and the ending balance includes
consumption taxes.

(Note 2) The transaction terms are based on current market practices.
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2. Affiliates, etc.
2nd fiscal period (From June 1, 2012 to November 30, 2012)
Not applicable

3rd fiscal period (From December 1, 2012 to May 31, 2013)
Not applicable

4th fiscal period (From June 1, 2013 to November 30, 2013)
Not applicable

5th fiscal period (From December 1, 2013 to May 31, 2014)
Not applicable

6th fiscal period (From June 1, 2014 to November 30, 2014)
Not applicable

7th fiscal period (From December 1, 2014 to May 31, 2015)
Not applicable

1

3. Sister companies, etc
2nd fiscal period (From June 1, 2012 to November 30, 2012)
Capital Relationship
S.tOCk or Percerjtag Transactio Ending
Attribute|  Name Address rlrrwl&\alﬁf |tn Business or Ofrivittlgg interlock gusiness Transaction | _2mount | Account | balance
ital | ©ccupation an Ing relation- (Thousand$ title  [(Thousand
capita owning 1 officers, hi of yen) of yen)
(Millions (owned) etc. ship
of yen)
Purchase of
beneficiary
c 4-1 rights of real 45,000,000 B -
- ross . ) - ;
Subsidiar X Nihonbashi Subsidiary|estate in trust
of major gﬁfccl)asle 1-chome, 13,916 Eueslnzzgate - None |of major |Acceptance of
unitholder | P Chuo-ku, unitholder |tenant
ompany (£
OKyo leasehold and| 1,756,534 - -
security
deposits
Purchase of
beneficiary
41 rights of real 20,500,004 B -
idi i i idiaryestate in trust
Sub5|_d|ar B Nihonbashi Real estate SubS|_d|ary
of major [Pixis Ltd. |1-chome, 3 business - None |of major |Acceptance of
unitholder Chuo-ku, unitholder [tenant
Tokyo leasehold and| 1,200,000 - -
security
deposits
Purchase of
beneficiary
11 Kanda- rights of real 8,860,000 B -
idi i idiaryestate in trust
Sub5|_d|ar Jimbocho Real estate SubS|_d|ary
of major |Kotoru Ltd.|1-chome, 3 business - None |of major |Acceptance of
unitholder Chiyoda- unitholder [tenant
ku, Tokyo leasehold and 46,941 - -
security
deposits
4-1 Purchase of
Subsidiar, Nihonbashi Real estate Subsidiary beneficiar
of major [Rouge LLC|1-chome, 1 . - None |of major |- Y 8,790,00( - -
. business . rights of real
unitholder Chuo-ku, unitholder 5
Tok estate in trust
yo
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Capital Relationship
?gﬂi;?r iﬁ?ﬁiﬁiﬁ Interlock Transactio Ending
. | Businessor| = . nterlock- g siness ' amount | Account | balance
Attribute| Name Address ment in occupation rlghts ing relation. Transaction (Thousand$ tile  |(Thousand
capital owning | officers, shi of yen) of yen)
(N?monf (owned) | etc. P
of yen
Purchase of
beneficiary 4.540.00( _ _
4-1 rights of real T
Subsidiar Nihonbashi Subsidiary|estate in trust
) Classer Real estate :
of major "'~ 1-chome, 1 lpusiness - None [of major | Acceptance of
unitholder Chuo-ku, unitholder [tenant
Tokyo leasehold and| 248,564 - -
security
deposits
Purchase of
Happ! 10-5 ?igﬂglglfarrgal 8,423,000 B -
y - .
idi i idiaryestate in trust
ubsdanireny - (pasda | o || g [S0507
maj p . , business ma Acceptance of
unitholder [Purpose  |Minato-ku, unitholder [tenant
Company |Tokyo leasehold and| 427,576 - -
security
deposits
Purchase of
beneficiary
s 2,840,00Q - -
4-1 rights of real T
Subsidiary] Nihonbashi Subsidiany|estate in trust
of major [KTMO Ltd.|1-chome 3 Real estate - None |of major
maj : ' business major JAcceptance of
unitholder Chuo-ku, unitholder [tenant
Tokyo leasehold and| 232,200 - -
security
deposits
Purchase of
beneficiary
s 6,980,000 - -
4-1 rights of real DS
Subsidiary Nihonbashi Subsidianylestate in trust
of major |VillaLLC [1-chome 0 Real estate None |of major
maj ' business - major JAcceptance of
unitholder Chuo-ku, unitholder [tenant
Tokyo leasehold and| 388,900 - -
security
deposits
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and| 1,002,413Tenant
Zemﬂﬁy leasehold
eposits and
Tokyu 20 Receipt of securit_y - 1,002,412
Subsidiary| I’\_Aa;ndasg Dogenzakal Real estate Subsidiary|tenant Fdeposns i
of major mentg 1-chome, 100 |management  — None |of major |leasehold and| 1,002,417trust
unitholder C Shibuyaku, business unitholder|security
-0rpora- - rokvo deposits
tion -
Operating
accounts 11,698
Rental 639,740 receivable
revenues, etc. !
Advances o8
received
Operations
TLC 16-3 related to
Subsidiary|Activia Dogenzaka| cr;}a;ﬂggement One inter Asset Payment of Other
of major [Investment|1-chome, 300 - locking fees for asset | 1,232,394accrued 399,575
. ; Investment ) manager
unitholder [Manage- |Shibuyaku, Corporation’s officer management expenses
ment Inc. |Tokyo portfolio
assets

-30-



3rd fiscal period (From December 1, 2012 to May 31, 2013)

Capital Relationship
S.tOCk or Pr—;rcer_]tag Transactio Ending
invest- . of voting | |nterlock- )
Attribute| Name Address| mentin | Business or rights ing Business| Transaction Ti;mountd Acp?unt Tkr)]alancedk
capital occupation owning | officers relat!on— (Thousan title (Thousandp
(Millions (owned) | ete. | Ship of yen) of yen)
of yen)
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and 96,209 Tenant
Zecurﬁy leasehold
eposits
Tokyu . and w | 1,09862
Lanzi/ sc |22 Receipt of ZBCU“'V'
Subsidiary |y >~ |Dogenzaka) Real estate Subsidianytenant eposits in
of major mentg 1-chome, 100 |management  — None |of major |leasehold and 96,204 trust
unitholde |~ Shibuyaku, business unitholder |Security
g OrPOra ro4yo deposits
ion
Operating
accounts 11,897
Saflgtr?lljes etc 781,27qrecelvable
T Advances 31
received
Operations
TLC 16-3 related to
[Subsidiary |Activia Dogenzakal cr;}a;ﬂ:gement One inter Asset Payment of Other
of major |Investment|{1-chome, 300 - locking fees for asset 518,630 accrued 181,619
. . Investment ) manager
unitholde |Manage- [Shibuyaku, Corporation’s officer management expenses
ment Inc. |Tokyo portfolio
assets
4th fiscal period (From June 1, 2013 to November 30, 2013)
Capital Relationship
stock or Percentag Transactio Ending
invest- - of voting | nterlock- .
Attribute| Name Address| mentin | Business or rights ing Business| Transaction Ti;mountd Acp?unt Tkr)]alancedk
capital occupation owning | officers relat!on— (Thousan title (Thousandp
(Millions (owned) | ete. | Ship of yen) of yen)
of yen)
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and 127,166Tenant
Zecurﬁy leasehold
eposits
Tokyu . and w | 122578
Lanzi/ sc |22 Receipt of ZBCU“'V'
Subsidiary |y - |Dogenzaka) Real estate Subsidiary tenant eposits in
of major mentg 1-chome, 100 |managementf  — None |of major |leasehold and| — 127,164trust
unitholde Shibuyaku, business unitholder |Security
t(_:orpora— Tokyo deposits
ion
Operating
accounts 15,924
Saflgtr?lljes etc 846,923 ecelvable
T Advances 56
received
Operations
TLC 16-3 related to
[Subsidiary |Activia Dogenzakal cr;}a;ﬂ:gement One inter Asset Payment of Other
of major |Investment|{1-chome, 300 - locking fees for asset 457,004 accrued 159,570,
. . Investment ) manager
unitholde |Manage- [Shibuyaku, Corporation’s officer management expenses
ment Inc. |Tokyo portfolio
assets
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5th fiscal period (From December 1, 2013 to May 31, 2014)

Capital Relationship
?gﬂi;gr i;?ﬁi#?g Transactio Ending
Attribute| Name Address| mentin Business or ri h'(sg Interlock- Business| Transaction | _2Mount | Account balance
. occupation an Ing relation- (Thousand$ title  [(Thousands
ce_lpltal owning | officers, <hi of yen) of yen)
(N?monf (owned) | etc. p
of yen
Purchase of
1 e ety | aw000
anda-
Subsidiary Jimbocho Subsidiary|éstate in trust
of major |SSG9 LLC|1-chome 0 Real estate - None |of major - -
maj ) ' business ma Acceptance of
unitholde Chiyoda- unitholder[tenant
ku, Tokyo leasehold and| 1,333,964
security
deposits
Purchase of
1 e pereta, | ae000
anda-
idi . i idiarestate in trust
Dimaior  |Howings [L-chome, | 3 [Realesite || e o - -
ma ! ' business f cceptance o
unitholde |Ltd. Chiyoda- unitholder [tenant
ku, Tokyo leasehold and 188,129
security
deposits
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and| 1,829,571
security
deposits
- Tenant
Receipt of leasehold
tenant and
Tokyu leasehold and 1,851,119Security 3,047,739
. |tandsc |%2 . |security deposits in
[Subsidiary M Dogenzaka| Real estate Subsidiarydeposits
) anage- |, ) trust
lof major ment 1-chome, 100 [management - None |of major Repayments of
unitholde C Shibuya-ky business unitholder pay
orpora- |3\ o tenant
tion 4 leasehold and 29,167,
security
deposits
Operating
Rental accounts 73,503
ental qreceivable
revenues, etc. 1,731,053 r
A vances 398
received
Operations
TLC 16-3 related to
[Subsidiary |Activia Dogenzakal (r;e;ﬂ:gement One inter Asset Payment of Other
of major |Investment|1-chome, 300 | - locking fees for asset 721,049accrued 212,680
. . nvestment ) manager
unitholde |Manage- [Shibuyaku, L officer management expenses
ment Inc. |Tokyo Corporatlons
) portfolio
assets
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6th fiscal period (From June 1, 2014 to November 30, 2014)

U7

Capital Relationship
stock or Percentag| . .
” . Transactio Ending
invest- ) of voting | nterlock- .
Attribute| Name Address| mentin | Business or rights ing Business| Transaction | . 2MouNt Account | balance
capital occupation owning | officers raaqon— (Thousand title (Thousand
(Millions (owned) | ete. | Ship of yen) of yen)
of yen)
Receipt of
tenant
leasehold and 232,384Tenant
ZeCUfﬁy leasehold
eposits
Tokvu P and | 32719
Lanzi/ sc |22 Repayments of security
Subsidiary |y >~ |Dogenzaka) Real estate Subsidiary tenant deposits in
of major mentg 1-chome, 100 |managementf — — None |of major |leasehold and 2,32gtrust
unitholde Shibuyaku, business unitholder |Security
c Y 4
ﬁ;ﬂpora— Tokyo deposits
n
Operating
accounts 80,043
Saflgtr?lljes etc 1922 667recelvable
T Advances 339
received
Operations
TLC 16-3 related to
[Subsidiary |Activia Dogenzakal cr;}a;ﬂ:gement One inter Asset Payment of Other
of major |Investment|{1-chome, 300 - locking fees for asset 642,289accrued 218,752
. . Investment ) manager
unitholder |Manage- |[Shibuyaku, Corporation’s officer management expenses
ment Inc. |Tokyo portfolio
assets
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7th fiscal period (From December 1, 2014 to May 31, 2015)

Capital Relationship
?gﬂi;gr i;?ﬁi#?g Transactio Ending
Attribute| Name Address| mentin | BUSiness orl = h'(sg interlocke gusiness Transaction | -2mount | Account| balance
. occupation an Ing relation- (Thousand$ title  [(Thousands
capital owning | officers, shi of yen) of yen)
(N?monf (owned) | etc. p
of yen
Purchase of
beneficiary 5.850.00 _ |
4-1 rights of real R
Subsidiary |Godo Nihonbashi Subsidiary|éstate in trust
) : Real estate .
of major |Kaisha 1-chome, 1 business - None |of major |Acceptance of
unitholde |Bellflower [Chuo-ku, unitholder [tenant
Tokyo leasehold and 336,92 - -
security
deposits
Purchase of
beneficiary 30.300.00 _ |
4-1 rights of real D
Subsidiary | Nihonbashi | Subsidiary|estate in trust
f major asser 1-chome 1 Rea estate - None |of major f
P LLC ' business . Acceptance 0
unitholde Chuo-ku, unitholder [tenant
Tokyo leasehold and| 1,130,13 - —
security
deposits
Delivery of
tenant
leasehold and| 1,605,891 Tenant
ZeCUfﬁy leasehold
eposits
Tokyu . and w | 4883960
Lanzil sc |22 Receipt of ZBCU”'Y )
Subsidiary |y >~ |Dogenzaka) Real estate Subsidiary tenant eposits in
of major mentg 1-chome, 100 |managementf  — None |of major |leasehold and| 1,606,16trust
unitholde |~ Shibuyaku, business unitholder |Security
-orpora- Tokyo deposits
tion -
Operating
accounts 87,112
Rental 3.093,984receivable
revenues, etc. ! ! Advances
received 488
Operations
TLC 16-3 related to
ISubsidiary |Activia Dogenzaka| cr;}a;ﬂ:gement One inter Asset Payment of Other
of major |Investment|{1-chome, 300 | - locking fees for asset 820,491|accrued 255,498
. . nvestment ) manager
unitholde |Manage- [Shibuyaku, Corporation’s officer management expenses
ment Inc. |Tokyo portfolio
assets

(Note 1) The amount of Payment of fees for asset management above is in accordance with the terms set forth in the Articles
of Incorporation of the Investment Corporation.

(Note 2) Of the amounts above, the transaction amount does not include consumption taxes, and the ending balance includes
consumption taxes.

(Note 3) The transaction terms are based on current market practices.

4. Directors and major individual unitholders
2nd fiscal period (From June 1, 2012 to November 30, 2012)
Not applicable

3rd fiscal period (From December 1, 2012 to May 31, 2013)
Not applicable

4th fiscal period (From June 1, 2013 to November 30, 2013)
Not applicable
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5th fiscal period (From December 1, 2013 to May 31, 2014)
Not applicable

6th fiscal period (From June 1, 2014 to November 30, 2014)
Not applicable

7th fiscal period (From December 1, 2014 to May 31, 2015)
Not applicable
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Notes on Investment and Rental Properties

The Investment Corporation holds Urban Retail and Tokyo Office properties and other properties in Tokyo
and other regions for rental revenue. The carrying amounts on the balance sheets, changes during the fiscal
period, and fair values of investment and rental properties are as follows.

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Fiscal periods
U (From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From
se 2012 to December 1, 2013 to December 1, 2014 to December 1,
November 30, 2012 to May November 30, 2013 to May November 30, 2014 to May
2012) 31, 2013) 2013) 31, 2014) 2014) 31, 2015)
Carrying amount on theg
balance sheets
ggg’i‘r?rf;gatof period —| 94817681 94,776,350 97,815,993 130,346,361 130,110,434
Urban .
Retail ggﬁgges during 94,817,681 (41,331) 3,039,642| 32,530,367|  (235,926) (142,172)
Properties
gg:fg;ce atend of 04,817,681 94,776,350 97,815,993| 130,346,361 130,110,434| 129,968,262
o el 99,550,000( 99,650,000 103,910,000( 140,110,000{ 144,270,000 148,480,000
Carrying amount on theg
balance sheets
E:é?:ﬁﬁgtof period —| 41,721,522 47445214 47,267,541 55,983,058 66,849,917
Tokyo :
Office g:r?g‘ges during 41,721,522| 5,723,692 (177,673) 8,715,517 10,866,858| 30,374,740
Properties
gg:ﬁﬂfe atend of 41,721,522| 47,445214] 47,267,541 55,983,058| 66,849,917| 97,224,657
o e 2endef 42,180,0000 47,710,000( 48,280,000 58,050,000 71,050,000 104,320,000
Carrying amount on thg
balance sheets
gg;‘;‘,fﬁ gtof period —| 34881,212] 40,081,494 39,933,780 45,595,087| 45,474,053
Prg;g‘:{ies g:ﬁgges during 34,881,212 5,200,281 (147,713) 5,661,307 (121,033)| 10,645,018
gglﬁ)'zfe atend of 34,881,212| 40,081,494| 39,933,780| 45,595,087 45,474,053 56,119,072
E:‘rirovd""'“e atend of 36,160,000 42,110,000| 42,800,000 49,500,000] 49,810,000 61,330,000
Carrying amount on thg
balance sheets
Balance at 171,420,417| 182,303,059 185,017,315 231,924,507| 242,434,405
beginning of period B e s el I T
Total ggﬁgges during 171,420,417| 10,882,642|  2,714,255| 46,907,192| 10,509,897| 40,877,587
?::i":‘)':fe atendof | 171 420,417 182,303,059 185,017,315 231,924,507 242,434,405 283,311,992
gg‘rirovda'“e atend of 177,890,000 189,470,000 194,990,000 247,660,000 265,130,000 314,130,000

(Note 1) The carrying amount on the balance sheets is the acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation.

(Note 2) The main reason for the increase in the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015 is the acquisition of 3
properties (Shiodome Building (acquisition of 15% co-ownership interest), Osaka Nakanoshima
Building (additional acquisition of the remaining 50% co-ownership interest) and Market Square
Sagamihara) worth ¥41,335,065 thousand. The decrease is mainly due to the provision of
depreciation worth ¥887,061 thousand.

The main reason for the increase in the fiscal period ended November 31, 2014 is the acquisition of
1 property (OSAKI WIZTOWER) worth ¥11,107,329 thousand. The decrease is mainly due to the
provision of depreciation worth ¥762,984 thousand.

The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014 is the acquisition of 6
properties (Kobe Kyu Kyoryuchi 25Bankan, Tokyu Plaza Sapporo*, Kamata Kosan Building*,
Gotanda Front*, Shinagawa Place* and J-CORE Omori*) worth ¥48,229,812 thousand. The
decrease is mainly due to the transfer of the building portion of Tokyo Kikai Honsha Building* and
the provision of depreciation worth ¥692,998 thousand and ¥739,386 thousand, respectively.

The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013 is the acquisition of
1 property (Hitotsugi LIP*) worth ¥3,125,128 thousand. The decrease is mainly due to provision of
depreciation (¥518,426 thousand).

The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013 is the acquisition of 2
properties (TK Shinbashi Building* and Osaka Nakanoshima Building) worth ¥11,223,650
thousand. The decrease is mainly due to provision of depreciation (¥487,983 thousand).
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The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012 is the acquisition of
18 properties (Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku, Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, Ebisu Q Plaza*,
Shinbashi Place, Kyoto Karasuma Parking Building, TLC Ebisu Building, A-PLACE Ebisu Minami,
Yoyogi Place*, Aoyama Plaza Building*, Luogo Shiodome, Tokyo Kikai Honsha Building*, A-

PLACE lkebukuro, COCOE Amagasaki (Land)*, icot Nakamozu, icot Kongo, icot Mizonokuchi,

icot Tama Center, and Kanayama Center Place*) worth ¥171,789,737 thousand. The decrease is
mainly due to the recording of depreciation (¥452,047 thousand).

* The names of these properties were changed as follows. The same shall apply hereinafter.

After the change

Before the change

Effective Date

Amagasaki Q's MALL (Land)

COCOE Amagasaki (Land)

October 9, 201

A-PLACE Yoyogi

Yoyogi Place

November 1, 2014

A-PLACE Aoyama

Aoyama Plaza Building

November 1, 2014

A-PLACE Shinbashi

TK Shinbashi Building

November 1, 2014

A-PLACE Gotanda

Gotanda Front

November 1, 2014

A-PLACE Shinagawa

Shinagawa Place

November 1, 2014

A-PLACE Kanayama

Kanayama Center Place

November 1, 201

icot Omori J-CORE Omori October 1, 2014
TAMACHI SQUARE Tokyo Kikai Honsha Building April 1, 2015
Q plaza EBISU Ebisu Q Plaza June 1, 2015

A-FLAG AKASAKA Hitotsugi LIP August 1, 2015

A-FLAG SAPPORO

Tokyu Plaza Sapporo

August 1, 2015

A-FLAG SHIBUYA

Kamata Kosan Building

August 1, 2015

(Note 3) The fair value at end of period is the appraisal value provided by an independent real estate
appraiser.

The income/loss concerning investment and rental properties is indicated under “Notes to Statements of
Operations.”

Segment Information

Segment Information for the fiscal periods ended November 30, 2012, May 31, 2013, November 30, 2013,
May 31, 2014, November 30, 2014 and May 31, 2015 is as follows:

1. Operating Segment Information

Disclosure is omitted as the Investment Corporation is comprised of a single reportable segment engaged in
the property rental business.

2. Enterprise-wide Disclosures
(1) Information about Products and Services

Disclosure is not required as revenues from external customers for the single segment is in excess of 90%
of total revenues.

(2) Information about Geographic Areas
Revenues from Overseas Customers:

Disclosure is not required as revenues from external customers attributed to Japan are in excess of 90% of
total revenues.

Property, plant and equipment:

Disclosure is not required as Property, plant and equipment located in Japan are in excess of 90% of total
Property, plant and equipment.
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3. Information about Major Customers
(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Revenues for the fiscal period ended

(From (From (From (From (From (From
Name of June 1, December Junel, December Junel, December Related
Customer 2012to 1,2012to 2013to 1,2013to 2014to 1,2014to Segment
November May 31, November May 31, November May 31, 9
30, 2012) 2013) 30, 2013) 2014) 30, 2014) 2015)
Tokyu Land Property
. 4,465,077 5,022,232 5,277,980 5,864,566 5,896,023 4,794,070 rental
Corporation busi
usiness
Tokyu Land SC Property
Management 639,740 781,270 846,922 1,731,053 1,922,667 3,093,984 rental
Corporation business
Per Unit Information
Fiscal periods
(From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From
2012 to December 1, 2013 to December 1, 2014 to December 1,
November 30,| 2012to May | November 30,| 2013 to May | November 30,| 2014 to May
2012) 31, 2013) 2013) 31, 2014) 2014) 31, 2015)
Net assets per unit ¥459,095 ¥462,103 ¥460,680 ¥518,009 ¥518,143 ¥560,574
¥15,153
Net income per unit ¥16,946 ¥15,522 ¥16,194 ¥16,056 ¥16,688
[¥14,244]

(Note 1) Net income per unit is calculated by dividing net income by the day-weighted average number of
investment units for the period (192,831 units, 205,262 units, 205,262 units , 246,842 units, 251,062
units and 274,595 units for the fiscal periods ended November 30, 2012, May 31, 2013, November
30, 2013, May 31,2014, November 30, 2014 and May 31, 2015, respectively). For the fiscal period
ended November 30, 2012, net income per unit which is calculated based on day-weighted average
number of investment units (205,141 units) assuming that the fiscal period started on June 13, 2012,
the actual start date of asset management, is also provided in square brackets.

Fully diluted net income per unit is not stated, as there is no potential investment unit.

(Note 2) The basis for calculating net income per unit is as follows:

Fiscal periods
(From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From (From June 1, (From
2012 to December 1, 2013 to December 1, 2014 to December 1,
November 30,| 2012to May | November 30,| 2013 to May | November 30,| 2014 to May
2012) 31, 2013) 2013) 31, 2014) 2014) 31, 2015)
Net income
(Thousands of yen) 2,922,043 3,478,378 3,186,276 3,997,462 4,031,162 4,582,504
Amount not attributable to
common unitholders — — — — — —
(Thousands of yen)
Net income
attributable to common
investment units 2,922,043 3,478,378 3,186,276 3,997,462 4,031,162 4,582,504
(Thousands of yen)
Average number of
investment units for the 192,831 205,262 205,262 246,842 251,062 274,595
period (Units)

Significant Subsequent Events

Not applicable

Omission of Disclosure

As the need for disclosing notes on securities, retirement benefits, equity in earnings of affiliates, and asset
retirement obligations in this financial report is not material or applicable, the disclosure of these items is

omitted.
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(9)  Schedule of Financial Statements
Securities
1. Shares
For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:
Not applicable

2. Securities Other Than Shares
For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Type of Total Book Accrued Prepaid Market VaIL_Jatlon

Name face . accrued gain or Remarks
asset value interest | - value
value interest loss

Government Principal-stripped Given as
bonds government bonds| 10,000 9,930 — — 9,973 43 security
(5 years, Series 91 deposit

Total 10,000 9,930 — — 9,973 43
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Type of Total Book Accrued Prepaid Market Valqatlon
Name face . accrued gain or Remarks
asset value interest | value
value interest loss
Government Principal-stripped Given as
government bonds| 10,000 9,942 — — 9,965 22 security
bonds . _
(5 years, Series 91 deposit
Total 10,000 9,942 — - 9,965 22
For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Type of Total Book Accrued Prepaid Market Valqatlon
Name face . accrued gain or Remarks
asset value interest | value
value interest loss
Government Principal-stripped Given as
government bonds] 10,000 9,955 — — 9,985 30 security
bonds ; -
(5 years, Series 91 deposit
Total 10,000 9,955 — - 9,985 30
For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Type of Total Book Accrued Prepaid Market Valqatlon
Name face . accrued gain or Remarks
asset value interest | . value
value interest loss
Government Principal-stripped Given as
b government bonds| 10,000 9,967 — — 9,989 22 security
onds ; -
(5 years, Series 91 deposit
Total 10,000 9,967 — - 9,989 22
For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Type of Total Book Accrued Prepaid Market Valqatlon
Name face . accrued gain or Remarks
asset value interest | . value
value interest loss
Government Principal-stripped Given as
government bonds| 10,000 9,979 — — 9,999 19 security
bonds ; -
(5 years, Series 91 deposit
Total 10,000 9,979 — - 9,999 19
For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)
Type of Total Book Accrued Prepaid Market VaIL_Jatlon
Name face . accrued gain or Remarks
asset value interest | . value
value interest loss
Government Principal-stripped Given as
government bonds| 10,000 9,992 — — 9,999 7 security
bonds ; -
(5 years, Series 91 deposit
Total 10,000 9,992 — - 9,999 7
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Derivative Transactions

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:

Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Classification

Type of derivative
transactions

Amount of contract(Note 1)

Portion due
after one year

Fair value
(Note 2)

Over-the-counter

Interest rate swaps
Receive floating
Pay fixed

5,000,000

5,000,000

Total

5,000,000

5,000,000

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Classification

Type of derivative
transactions

Amount of contract(Note 1)

Fair value

Portion due
after one year

(Note 2)

Over-the-counter

Interest rate swaps
Receive floating
Pay fixed

5,000,000

5,000,000

Total

5,000,000

5,000,000

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Classification

Type of derivative
transactions

Amount of contract(Note 1)

Fair value

Portion due
after one year

(Note 2)

Over-the-counter

Interest rate swaps
Receive floating
Pay fixed

5,000,000

5,000,000

Total

5,000,000

5,000,000

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Classification

Type of derivative
transactions

Amount of contract(Note 1)

Fair value

Portion due
after one year

(Note 2)

Over-the-counter

Interest rate swaps
Receive floating
Pay fixed

5,000,000

5,000,000

Total

5,000,000

5,000,000
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

o Amount of contract(Note 1) _

Type of derivative - Fair value
transactions Portion due (Note 2)

after one year

Classification

Interest rate swaps
Over-the-counter Receive floating 5,000,000 5,000,000 —
Pay fixed

Total 5,000,000 5,000,000 —

(Note 1) The amounts of contract do not represent the market risk exposure associated with the derivative instruments.

(Note 2) The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific criteria are not measured at fair value in
the balance sheets and the interest received or paid under the interest rate swap contracts is recognized on an accrual
basis.
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Property and Equipment

The following tables show the summary of movement in property and equipment for the fiscal periods ended
November 30, 2012, May 31, 2013, November 30, 2013, May 31, 2014, November 30, 2014 and May 31,
2015, respectively.

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)

. Net
Beginning Ending Accumulated Depreciation property,
Increase Decrease o for the
balance Balance depreciation . plant and
period .
equipment
Buildings in — | 30,446,857 1,812| 30,445,044 428,592 429,045 30,016,451
trust (Note)
Str“t‘ﬁflusrtes n — 326,983 3,938 323,045 8,823 8,890 314,222
Machinery and
equipment in — 576,121 — 576,121 13,921 13,921 562,200
Tangible trust
Assets Tools, furniture
and fixtures in — 4,286 — 4,286 189 189 4,096
trust
Land in trust — | 136,258,287 — | 136,258,287 - — | 136,258,287
(Note)
Subtotal - 167,612,537 5,750| 167,606,786 451,527 452,047 167,155,259
Leasehold
rights in trust — 4,265,157 — 4,265,157 — — 4,265,157
Intangible (Note)
Assets
Subtotal - 4,265,157 - 4,265,157 — - 4,265,157
Total - 171,877,695 5,750 171,871,944 451,527 452,047 171,420,417

(Note) The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012 is the acquisition of 18 properties
(Tokyu Plaza Omotesando Harajuku, Tokyu Plaza Akasaka, Ebisu Q Plaza*, Shinbashi Place, Kyoto Karasuma
Parking Building, TLC Ebisu Building, A-PLACE Ebisu Minami, Yoyogi Place*, Aoyama Plaza Building*, Luogo
Shiodome, Tokyo Kikai Honsha Building*, A-PLACE Ikebukuro, COCOE Amagasaki (Land)*, icot Nakamozu, icot
Kongo, icot Mizonokuchi, icot Tama Center, and Kanayama Center Place*).

* The names of these properties were changed. For the details, please refer to “Notes on Investment and Rental
Properties”.
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

. Net
Beginning Ending Accumulated Depreciation property,
Increase Decrease L for the
balance Balance depreciation . plant and
period .
equipment
Bulldings in | 50 145.044| 3,077,941 1,183 33,521,802 891,456 463,429| 32,630,345
trust (Note)
S”“tfltjusrtes n 323,045 31,756 2,371 352,430 18,096 9,516 334,334
Machinery and
equipment in 576,121 41,869 - 617,991 28,449 14,527 589,542
trust
Tanaible Tools, furniture
9 and fixtures in 4,286 3,762 - 8,049 699 509 7,350
Assets
trust
Land in trust
(Note) 136,258,287 7,992,358 — | 144,250,646 - — | 144,250,646
Construction in - 3,224 - 3,224 - - 3,224
progress in trusf
Subtotal 167,606,78 11,150,913 3,555| 178,754,144 938,701 487,983 177,815,442
Leasehold 4,265,157 222,459 - 4,487,617 - - 4,487,617
rights in trust
Intangible
Assets
Subtotal 4,265,157 222,459 — 4,487,617 — — 4,487,617
Total 171,871,944 11,373,372 3,5655| 183,241,761 938,701 487,983| 182,303,059

(Note) The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013 is the acquisition of 2 properties (TK
Shinbashi Building* and Osaka Nakanoshima Building).

* The names of these properties were changed. For the details, please refer to “Notes on Investment and Rental

Properties”.
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For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

. Net
Beginning Ending Accumulated Depreciation property,
Increase Decrease L for the
balance Balance depreciation . plant and
period .
equipment
Buildingsin | 55 551 goo| 660,021 1,139| 34,180,684| 1,382,563 491,690| 32,798,121
trust (Note)
S”“tfltjusrtes in 352,430 8,361 - 360,792 28,285 10,189 332,506
Machinery and
equipment in 617,991 4,922 - 622,914 43,752 15,303 579,161
trust
Tanaible Tools, furniture
9 and fixtures in 8,049 15,833 - 23,882 1,943 1,244 21,939
Assets
trust
Land in trust
(Note) 144,250,646 2,467,140 — 146,717,786 — — 146,717,786
Construction in 3,224 1,976 - 5,200 - - 5,200
progress in trust
Subtotal 178,754,144 3,158,255 1,139| 181,911,260 1,456,545 518,426| 180,454,715
Leasehold 4,487,617 74,982 - 4,562,599 - - 4,562,599
rights in trust
Intangible
Assets
Subtotal 4,487,611 74,982 — 4,562,599 - — 4,562,599
Total 183,241,761 3,233,238 1,139| 186,473,860 1,456,545 518,426| 185,017,315

(Note) The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013 is the acquisition of 1 property
(Hitotsugi LIP*).

* The names of these properties were changed. For the details, please refer to “Notes on Investment and Rental
Properties”.
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:
(Unit: Thousands of yen)

. Net
Beginning Ending Accumulated Depreciation property,
Increase Decrease L for the
balance Balance depreciation . plant and
period .
equipment
Buildings in 34,180,684| 15,175,505 762,975| 48,593,214 2,013,828 700,488| 46,579,386
trust (Note D
S”“tfltjusrtes in 360,792 38,635 3,890 395,537 39,436 11,422 356,100
Machinery and
equipment in 622,914 469,244 1,034 1,091,124 67,624 24,906 1,023,499
trust
. Tools, furniture
Tangible : .
and fixtures in 23,882 13,210 115 36,977 4,417 2,535 32,560
Assets
trust
Land in trust
146,717,786 32,645,380 — | 179,363,166 — — | 179,363,166
(Note
Construction in 5,200 - - 5,200 - - 5,200
progress in trust
Subtotal 181,911,260 48,341,976 768,016 229,485,220 2,125,306 739,352| 227,359,913
'Leasehold 4,562,599 — — 4,562,599 - - 4,562,599
rights in trust
Intangible | e (Note 2 2,582 2,028 - 4,610 1,060 292 3,550
Assets
Subtotal 4,565,183 2,028 — 4,567,210 1,060 292 4,566,150
Total 186,476,443 48,344,004 768,016 234,052,430 2,126,366 739,644| 231,926,064

(Note 1) The main reason for the increase for the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014 is the acquisition of 6 properties (Kobe
Kyu Kyoryuchi 25Bankan, Tokyu Plaza Sapporo*, Kamata Kosan Building*, Gotanda Front*, Shinagawa Place* and
J-CORE Omori*).

* The names of these properties were changed. For the details, please refer to “Notes on Investment and Rental
Properties”.

(Note 2) “Other” is software (non-real estate asset).
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For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

.. Net
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending Accumulated De?gffr'g"on property,
balance Balance depreciation . plant and
period .
equipment
Buildings in | g 503214 3,728,381 1,833| 52,319,762| 2,734,761 722,766 49,585,001
trust (Note D
S”“tfltjusrtes in 395,537 7,804 - 403,342 49,339 9,903 354,002
Machinery and
equipment in 1,091,124 51,594 - 1,142,718 93,321 25,697 1,049,397
trust
Tanaible Tools, furniture
9 and fixtures in 36,977 24,885 244 61,618 8,702 4,414 52,916
Assets
trust
Land in trust
179,363,166 7,460,301 — | 186,823,468 - — | 186,823,468
(Note 9
Construction in 5,200 — - 5,200 - - 5,200
progress in trust
Subtotal 229,485,220 11,272,968 2,078 240,756,110 2,886,125 762,781| 237,869,985
Leasehold 4,562,599 28 —| 4562628 - —| 4562628
rights in trust
Intangible |~ 6 (Note 2 4,610 - - 4,610 1,521 461 3,089
Assets
Subtotal 4,567,21( 28 — 4,567,239 1,521 461 4,565,717
Total 234,052,430 11,272,996 2,078 | 245,323,349 2,887,646 763,242 242,435,703

(Note 1) The main reason for the increase in the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014 is the acquisition of 1 property

(OSAKI WIZTOWER).

(Note 2)

“Other” is software (non-real estate asset).
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:
Depreciation Net
Beginning Ending Accumulated P property,
Increase Decrease o for the
balance Balance depreciation . plant and
period .
equipment
Buildingsin | o> 319 762 9,297,901 — | 61617753 3,573,458 838,697| 58,044,295
trust(Note 1)
Str“tfltjusrtes in 403,342 145,310 - 548,652 62,644 13,304 486,007
Machinery and
equipment in 1,142,718 63,012 - 1,205,731 121,137 27,815 1,084,594
trust
Tanaible Tools, furniture
g and fixtures in 61,618 3,845 - 65,463 15,743 7,040 49,720
Assets
trust
Land in trust
186,823,468 32,250,515 — | 219,073,983 - — | 219,073,983
(Note 9
Construct'lon in 5,200 5,483 1,509 9,174 — - 9,174
progress in trust
Subtotal 240,756,110 41,766,157 1,509 | 282,520,759 3,772,983 886,858| 278,747,775
'Leasehold 4,562,628 — — 4,562,628 - - 4,562,628
rights in trust
Intangible | - 56 (Note 2 4,610 - - 4,610 1,982 461 2,628
Assets
Subtotal 4,567,239 - - 4,567,239 1,982 461 4,565,256
Total 245,323,349 41,766,157 1,509 | 287,087,998 3,774,966 887,319| 283,313,032
(Note 1) The main reason for the increase in the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015 is the acquisition of 3 properties (Shiodome
Building, Osaka Nakanoshima Building and Market Square Sagamihara).
(Note 2) “Other” is software (non-real estate asset).

Other Specified Assets
For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:

Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:

Not applicable
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:
Not applicable

Investment Corporation Bonds
For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:
Not applicable

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Issue Issue | Beginning Decrease Ending | Interest| Redemption| Use of Remarks
Date balance balance Rate Date funds
1st unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu April Aoril 25 repayment| Unsecured,
conditions among 25, - — | 4,000,000] 0.37%| ~PT > of the non-
e - 2019
specified investment 2014 long-term |  guaranteed
corporation bonds) borrowings
Total - - — | 4,000,000 - - - -

(Note)  Annual redemptions of investment corporation bonds scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were
as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 yearq 4-5 year

Unsecured bonds
(with pari passu conditions among specifigd - - - - 4,000,000
investment corporation bonds)
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For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

lssue Issue | Beginning Decrease Ending | Interest| Redemption| Use of Remarks
Date balance balance Rate Date funds
1st unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu April Aoril 25 repayment| Unsecured,
conditions among 25, 4,000,000 — | 4,000,000f 0.37% P ' of the non-
e 2019
specified investment 2014 long-term |  guaranteed
corporation bonds) borrowings
Total — | 4,000,000 — | 4,000,000 - - - -

(Note)  Annual redemptions of investment corporation bonds scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were
as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 yearg 4-5 year

Unsecured bonds
(with pari passu conditions among specifigd - - - - 4,000,000
investment corporation bonds)

For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Issue Issue | Beginning Decrease Ending | Interest| Redemption| Use of Remarks
Date balance balance Rate Date funds
1st u_nsecu_red bonds Partial
(with pari passu April Aoril 25 repayment| Unsecured,
conditions among 25, 4,000,000 — | 4,000,000{ 0.370% P ’ of the non-
L 2019
specified investment | 2014 long-term | guaranteed
corporation bonds) borrowings
2st u_nsecu_red bonds Partial
(with pari passu April Aoril 21 repayment| Unsecured,
conditions among 21, - — | 2,000,000| 0.2979%| ML of the non-
o 2020
specified investment 2015 long-term | - guaranteed
corporation bonds) borrowings
3st unsecured bonds Partial
(with pari passu April Aoril 21 repayment| Unsecured,
conditions among 21, - — | 2,000,000| 0.726% P ' of the non-
e 2025
specified investment 2015 Iong-te_rm guaranteed
corporation bonds) borrowings
Total — | 4,000,000 — | 8,000,000 - - - -

(Note)  Annual redemptions of investment corporation bonds scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were
as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3—4 yeary 4-5 year

Unsecured bonds
(with pari passu conditions among specifigd - - - 4,000,000 2,000,000
investment corporation bonds)

Loans Payable

The following tables show the details of loans payable for the fiscal periods ended November 30, 2012, May
31, 2013, November 30, 2013, May 31, 2014, November 30, 2014 and May 31, 2015, respectively.
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For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2012:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Bsgl';]:g;g Increase Decrease bE:Ig:ge interest rate Méél‘;tltgty ijusrf de Remarks
Lender (Note 1
Short-

. - Unsecured,
rorm | Samitomo Mitsul Trust — | 17,000,000 — | 17,000,000] 0.451950% | Y€ 13 | (Note 2 non-
oans Bank, Limited 2013 uaranteed

payable 9
Total - 17,000,000 — 17,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking June 13 Unsecured,
Corporation - 6,000,000 — 6,000,000| 0.37695% 2014 "| (Note 2 non-
P guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
- — 0.79955% 2015 "| (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation
Mizuho Corporate Bank,
Ltd.(Note 3 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mltsu_blshl UFJ Trgst and _ 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000
Banking Corporation
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 8,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.86572% 2016 "| (Note 2 non-
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ _ guaranteed
Bank. Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000
Long- Mizuho Corporate Bank, _ 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000
i Ltd.(Note 3
erm
loans
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
payable Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.95315% 2017 (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ guaranteed
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mizuho Corporate Bank,
Ltd. (Note 3 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mizuho Corporate Bank, _ _
Ltd. (Note 3 3,000,000 3,000,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
- — 1.06309% 2018 "| (Note 2 non-
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000 guaranteed
Bank, Limited
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ 3,000,000 _ 3,000,000
Banking Corporation
Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ o June 13, -
Japan Inc. 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.19051% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
Total — | 60,000,000 - 60,000,000

(Note 1) Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.

(Note 2)  Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.

(Note 3) On July 1, 2013, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. changed its corporate name to Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

(Note 4) Annual repayments of long-term loans payable (except for current portion) scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date

were as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years

Long-term loans payable 6,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Beginning Increase Decrease Ending interest rate| Maturity Use of Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
Short-
. - Unsecured
rorm | Samitomo Mitsul Trust 17,000,000 — | 17,000,000 — | oas263% | M3 | (Note 2 non-
payable ! guaranteed
Total 17,000,000 - 17,000,000 -
. S . Unsecured
gﬂgﬁzﬁlszgfﬂgﬁ and - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000| 0.33776% AgrélliS, (Note 2 non-
9 p guaranteed
. o . Unsecured
Qumitoro Mitsul Banking | 4 600,000 - — | e000.000| 036989% | e | (Note 2 non-
P guaranteed
I\C/I:)zuSF)DTrust & Banking _ 2,000,000 _ 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. - 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.30516% 2015 "| (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank = 500,000 — 500,000
Sumitormo Mitsul Trust - 500,000 - 500,000
oumitormo Mitsul Trust 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.79955% 2015 (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3000000 _ _ 3.000.000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation A A
Mizuho Corporate Bank, _ _
Ltd. (Note 5 3,000,000 3,000,000
Long- | mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
term Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
loans
payable | The Bank of Tokyo-
(Note 3 | Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — | 3000000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.86572% 2016 "| (Note 2 non-
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 3.000.000 _ _ 3.000.000 guaranteed
Bank, Limited e e
Mizuho Corporate Bank,
Ltd. (Note 5 3,000,000 3,000,000
'\CA(I)ZUF‘IE)DTmSt & Banking _ 2,000,000 _ 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. = 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. = 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.33016% 2017 'l (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank - 500,000 - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsul Trust - 500,000 - 500,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.95315% 2017 ! (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3000000 _ _ 3.000.000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation A A
Mizuho Corporate Bank, _ _
Ltd. (Note 5 3,000,000 3,000,000
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category o ’ Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
. - Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 0.68315% | March 31 ’
e — 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 "| (Note 4 non-
Bank, Limited (Note & 2018 guaranteed
Mizuho Corporate Bank, _ _
Ltd. (Note § 3,000,000 3,000,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
- — 1.06309% | “Ha™ | (Note2 non-
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000 guaranteed
Bank, Limited
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000
Banking Corporation
. o . Unsecured
; Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ _ o April 19, -
LtZ?n% Bank, Limited 800,000 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
loans
payable | Mitsubishi UFJ Trustand - 800,000 - 800,000 0.910410 | AP 19 | (Note 2 ot
Banking Corporation ' ’ ’ ° 2019
(Note 3 guaranteed
. . Unsecured,
mg‘émgoéporate Bank, - 800,000 - 800,000 0.91941% A%'llgg' (Note 2 non-
. guaranteed
. Unsecured,
Tne Bank of Tokyo- —| 800000 - 800000 0.91941% | AP | (Note 2 non-
T guaranteed
. o . . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ _ o April 19, -
Corporation 400,000 400,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
- Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ April 19, -
Japan Inc. 400,000 400,000 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
Unsecured,
Sovelopment Sank of 6,000,000 - — | s000000| 119051% | Y5223 | (Note2 non-
P ) guaranteed
Total 60,000,000 25,000,000 — 85,000,000

(Note 1) Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.

(Note 2) Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.

(Note 3) Long-term loans payable include current portion.

(Note 4)  Use of the borrowings is appropriated to repayment of outstanding loans payable.

(Note 5) On July 1, 2013, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. changed its corporate name to Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

(Note 6) This long-term loans payable is hedged by interest rate swap contract. The average interest rate reflects the effectiveness of this
hedging instrument.

(Note 7)  Annual repayments of long-term loans payable (except for current portion) scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date

were as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years

Long-term loans payable 12,000,000 12,000,000 18,000,000 17,000,000
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For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2013:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Beginning Increase Decrease| ENding interest rate| Maturity Use of Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
Short-
. . August Unsecured,
e | psuoishl UF9 Thist and — | 3,000,000 — | 3000000| 0.200419% | 30, (Note 2 non-
payable 9 p 2014 guaranteed
Total — 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
. S . Unsecured
léﬂ;tﬁzlzlsfggFi;:éSrtl and 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000| 0.32470% Agrél1245, (Note 2 non-
9 P guaranteed
. o . Unsecured
Qumitoro Mitsul Banking | 4 600,000 - — | 6000000 034970% | 23 | (Note 2 non-
P guaranteed
Pizuho Trust &Banking | 2,000,000 - — | 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,040 - — 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.29970% 2015 | (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 - — 500,000
Sumitormo Mitsul Trust 500,000 - - 500,000
oumitormo Mitsul Trust 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.79955% 2015 (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 — — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Long- | mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
term Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
loans
payable | sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(Note 3 | Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.86572% 2016 "| (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co..LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,090 - — 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,090 - — 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.32470% 2017 'l (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,00p - - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 - - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsul Trust 500,000 - - 500,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.95315% 2017 ! (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 — — 3,000,000
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category - . Average .
ngllgg(l:r;g Increase Decrease E:Iglr?cge interest rate Maturity lfJuSr? dzf Remarks
Lender (Note D
. - Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 0.68315% | March 31 . !
e 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 " (Note 4) non-
Bank, Limited (Note B 2018 guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 8,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
1.06309% 2018 "1 (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3.000.000 _ _ 3.000.000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation e e
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
. o . Unsecured,
Long- | Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 800,000 - - 800,000 0.91041% | APT19% | (Note 2 non-
Bank, Limited 2019
term guaranteed
loans K T . Unsecured,
payable 'é’“tsi‘(’.b'srgum st and 800,000 - - 800,000 0.91941% A%'llgg' (Note 2 non-
(Note 3 anking Corporation guaranteed
April 19 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 800,000 - - 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 ! (Note 2 non-
guaranteed
. Unsecured,
Tne Bank of Tokyo- 800,000 - - 800000 0.91941% | AP | (Note 2 non-
T guaranteed
. o . . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ _ April 19, '
Corporation 400,000 400,000 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non-
guaranteed
- Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ April 19, -
Japan Inc. 400,000 400,000| 0.91941% 5019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
Unsecured,
JD:";':’mem Bank of 6,000,000 - — | s000000| 119051% | Y5223 | (Note2 non-
P ) guaranteed
Total 85,000,000 — — 85,000,000
(Note 1) Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.
(Note 2) Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.
(Note 3) Long-term loans payable include current portion.
(Note 4)  Use of the borrowings is appropriated to repayment of outstanding loans payable.
(Note 5)  This long-term loans payable is hedged by interest rate swap contract. The average interest rate reflects the effectiveness of this
hedging instrument.
(Note 6) Annual repayments of long-term loans payable scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 yearg

4-5 yeal

Long-term loans payable

10,000,000

18,000,000

12,000,000

18,000,000

17,000,000
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Beginning Increase Decrease| ENding interest rate| Maturity Use of Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
Short-
. . August Unsecured,
e | psupisl P9 Tistand | 3,000,000 - — | 3000000| 0.20726% | 20, (Note 2 non-
payable 9 p 2014 guaranteed
Total 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
. S . Unsecured,
wemenvr st | ynogoel | sooom| - | oo | 4125 | uaen | Voim
9 P guaranteed
. o . Unsecured,
Qumitoro Mitsul Banking | 4 600,000 - — | 6000000 034726% | 23 | (Note 2 non-
P guaranteed
Pizuho Trust &Banking | 2,000,000 - — | 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,040 - — 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.29726% 2015 | (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,000 - - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 - — 500,000
Sumitormo Mitsul Trust 500,000 - - 500,000
oumitormo Mitsul Trust 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.79955% 2015 (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 — — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Long- | mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
term Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
loans
payable | sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(Note 3 | Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.86572% 2016 "| (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co..LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,090 - — 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,090 - — 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.32226% 2017 'l (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,00p - - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 - - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsul Trust 500,000 - - 500,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.95315% 2017 ! (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 — — 3,000,000
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
. - Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 0.68315% | March 31, . !
Bank, Limited 5,000,000 - = | 50000001 (\gie 5 2018 | (Noted) o o e
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 8,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
1.06309% 2018 "1 (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 3.000.000 _ _ 3.000.000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation e e
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
. o . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ _ April 19, -
Bank, Limited 800,000 800,000 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 gue:%r;teed

. o - Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 800,000 - - 800,000 0.910410 | AP 19 | (Note 2 non-
Banking Corporation 2019 guaranteed

April 19 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 800,000 - - 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 ! (Note 2 non-
guaranteed
. Unsecured,
Hl‘fs L?bai‘gﬁi‘l’jg J"kﬁ’g 800,000 - - 800,000| 0.91941% A%'llgg' (Note 2 non-
P guaranteed
. o . . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ _ o April 19, -
Corporation 400,000 400,000 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 gugr(;teed
- Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ April 19, -
Japan Inc. 400,000 400,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
Unsecured,
JD:";':’mem Bank of 6,000,000 - — | s000000| 119051% | Y5223 | (Note2 non-
p ) guaranteed
. L January Unsecured,
g;r’:‘k'toLTn?it'\e"gS“' Trust - 160,000 - 160,000| 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
! 2020 guaranteed
. L January Unsecured,
Long- 'E‘f'tst.b'ST:UFJ T;.“St and - 160,000 - 160,000 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
term anking Lorporation 2020 guaranteed
loans January Unsecured,
payable | Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 160,000 - 160,000| 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
(Note 3 2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
The Bank of Tokyo- - 160,000 - 160,000| 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2020 guaranteed
. o ] January Unsecured,
ggrr“';‘r’;% l’:"'tS“' Banking - 80,000 - 80,000 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
p 2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
?:Vgéomem Bank of - 80,000 - 80,000 | 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-

P ) 2020 guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust December Unsecured,
Bank. Limited - 1,060,000 - 1,060,000 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-

’ 2020 guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and December Unsecured,
X . - 1,060,000 — 1,060,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
Banking Corporation 2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. — 1,060,000 — 1,060,000 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
H.‘e Bank of Tokyo- — | 1,060,000 — | 1,060,000| 1.07980% | 19, (Note 2 non-
itsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2020 guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Bankin December Unsecured,
Corporation 9 — 530,000 - 530,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
P 2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
JD:";"r']"I’;Te”t Bank of - 530,000 - 530,000 1.07980% | 19, (Note 2 non-
P ) 2020 guaranteed
. L January Unsecured,
S:nmlfol_’?n?n'\é'gs”' Trust — | 1,340,000 — | 1,340,000| 1.07856% 10, (Note 2 non-
’ 2021 guaranteed
. o January Unsecured,
'é";ﬁ;ﬁ';@gr';i st and —| 1,340,000 — | 1,340,000| 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. — 1,340,000 - 1,340,000 1.07856% 10, (Note 2 non-
2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,

The Bank of Tokyo- — | 1,340,000 — | 1,340,000| 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2021 guaranteed
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Categor:;nder ngligglgg Increase Decrease E:Igr(:ge in?zvrggjgite Mz;utreity lfJuSr? dzf Remarks
1-;2?- gl(;f:;(t)org:%;\nitsui Banking - 670,000 - 670,000 1.07856% Jailr.](L)],ary (Note 2 Unziﬂ—”ea
loans 2021 guaranteed
?Ei?slg ?:g:;Oﬁ]Tem Bank of - 670,000 - 670,000 1.07856% Jafg,a "1 Note e

) 2021 guaranteed
Total 85,000,000 12,800,000{ 4,000,000] 93,800,000
(Note 1) Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.
(Note 2) Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.
(Note 3) Long-term loans payable include current portion.
(Note 4)  Use of the borrowings is appropriated to repayment of outstanding loans payable.
(Note 5)  This long-term loans payable is hedged by interest rate swap contract. The average interest rate reflects the effectiveness of this
hedging instrument.

(Note 6) Annual repayments of long-term loans payable scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 yea|

S

Long-term loans payable

12,000,000

12,000,000

18,000,000

17,000,000

16,000,000
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For the fiscal period ended November 30, 2014:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Bsgllgg(l:r;g Increase Decrease bE:Igwge interest rate Mgt:gy ijusrf de Remarks
Lender (Note D
. o August Unsecured,
'é";ﬁ;’iz'srggi ;:fr: and 1 3 600,000 — | 3,000,000 — | o0.29636% | 30, (Note 2 non-
9 p 2014 guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited - 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
Short-
term Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
loans Banking Corporation - 2,500,000 2,500,000 - July 9 Unsecured,
payable 0.40482% 2oy1 2| (Note2) non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. — | 2500,000| 2,500,000 - guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2,500,0001 2,500,000
Total 3,000,000 10,000,000f 13,000,000 -
. L ) Unsecured,
cumitoro Mitsui Banking. | 6,000,000 — | 6,000,000 — | o3a636% | e | (Note 2 non-
P guaranteed
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co.,LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,090 - - 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.29532% 2015 (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,00p - - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 — — 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 500,000 - - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.79955% 2015 "1 (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Long- Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
term
loans . S Unsecured,
payable g:mtol_ri“rgh'\é'gs“' Trust — | 1,400,000 — | 1,400,000| 0.29504% Jaggi‘g’ % (Note 0) non-
(Note 3 ' guaranteed
. - Unsecured
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and January 9 : ’
] h — 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 0.29504% | (Note 4) non-
Banking Corporation 2016 guaranteed
January 9 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. — 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 0.29504% 2016y | (Note 4) non-
guaranteed
Unsecured
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ on | January 9, : -
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,400,000 1,400,000 0.29504% 2016 (Note 4) non
guaranteed
. s ) Unsecured,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking - 700,000 - 700,000| 0.20504% | J3MUAY 9| (Nope 4) non-
Corporation 2016
guaranteed
Unsecured,
?:Vgr']omem Bank of - 700,000 - 700,000( 0.20504% [ JATUEY O (Note 4) non-
P ) guaranteed
Mltsu‘b|sh| UFJ Trpst and 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000
Banking Corporation
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.86572% 2016 "| (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
. o . December Unsecured,
ngl(t)?;:E, r':’"tsu' Banking — | 6,000,000 — | 6,000,000 0.31524% 13, (Note 4) non-
P 2016 guaranteed
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category I ’ Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co.LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,040 - - 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,090 - - 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.32032% 2017 (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,00p - - 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 — — 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 500,000 - - 500,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.95315% 2017 "| (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ guaranteed
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — 3,000,000
. L Unsecured
0, 1
pamitormo Mitsul Trust 5,000,000 - — | 5000000 %,Sifelg/" Mareh L (Note 4 non-
! guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
1.06309% 2018 ! (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ guaranteed
Long- Banking Corporation 3,000,000 3,000,000
term
loans The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
payable | Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 8,000,000 8,000,000
(Note 3
. o . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ _ o April 19, S
Bank, Limited 800,000 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
. o . Unsecured
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ o April 19, S
Banking Corporation 800,000 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
April 19 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 800,000 - - 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 ! (Note 2 non-
guaranteed
. Unsecured,
Tne Bank of Tokyo- 800,000 - - 800000 0.91941% [ AP | (Note 2 non-
T guaranteed
. o . . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ _ o April 19, —
Corporation 400,000 400,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
. Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ o April 19, -
Japan Inc. 400,000 400,000 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ o June 13, -
Japan Inc. 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.19051% 2019 (Note 2 non
guaranteed
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co.,LTD. 1,500,000 1,500,000 August Unsecured,
0.51000% 29, (Note 4 non-
Shinkin Central Bank —| 1,500,000 —| 1,500,000 2019 guaranteed
. o January Unsecured,
pamitamo Milsul Trust 160,000 - - 160,000 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
! 2020 guaranteed
. L January Unsecured,
ggﬁﬁﬂ'sggi st and 160,000 - - 160,000| 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
9 p 2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 160,000 - — 160,000| 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
The Bank of Tokyo- 160,000 - - 160,000| 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
2020 guaranteed
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category — . Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease| interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
X . . January Unsecured,
g‘(‘)?“;?;:% Mitsul Banking 80,000 - - 80,000 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
p 2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
5’;";’1"&?6”‘ Bank of 80,000 - - 80,000 | 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
p i 2020 guaranteed
. - January Unsecured,
g:nmlfogn?i t"é'('jtsu' Trust - 600,000 - 600,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
’ 2020 guaranteed
. . January Unsecured,
ggﬁmﬂ;ﬂ;;ﬂ and - 600,000 - 600,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
9 p 2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 600,000 - 600,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
ine Bank of Tokyo- - 600,000 - 600,000 0.72546% | 10, (Note 4) non-
T 2020 guaranteed
R N . January Unsecured,
g‘;?';?g:% r’;""su' Banking - 300,000 - 300,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
p 2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
?:V:r:oﬁ]?e”t Bank of - 300,000 - 300,000 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
P ) 2020 guaranteed
. o December Unsecured,
pamitormo Mitsul Trust 1,060,000 - — | 1060000 1.07980% | 19, (Note 2 non-
' 2020 guaranteed
. . December Unsecured,
Long- '\B"grfsig'sr‘c';':i st and |1 660,000 - — | 1060000 1.07980% | 19, (Note 2 non-
loans 9 P 2020 guaranteed
payable December Unsecured,
(Note 3 Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,060,000 — - 1,060,000 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
The Bank of Tokyo- 1,060,000 - — | 1,080,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
2020 guaranteed
. o ) December Unsecured,
2‘(‘)’:";?2:% r’:’"ts“' Banking 530,000 - - 530,000 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
p 2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
?:V:*Oﬁ]rgem Bank of 530,000 - - 530,000 1.07980% | 19, (Note 2 non-
P : 2020 guaranteed
X . January Unsecured,
g:nmk“ol_’?nfit"é'gs”' Trust 1,340,000 - — | 1340000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
' 2021 guaranteed
. - January Unsecured,
’g"”su_b'Sh' URJ Trustand |3 344 o0 - — | 1,340,000| 1.07856% 10, (Note 2 non-
anking Corporation
2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,340,000 — - 1,340,000| 1.07856% 10, (Note 2 non-
2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
The Bank of Tokyo- 1,340,000 - — | 1,340,000| 1.07856% 10, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
2021 guaranteed
. o ) January Unsecured,
Sumitorto Mitsu Banking 670,000 - - 670,000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
P 2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
5’:":{'1051?9”‘ Bank of 670,000 - - 670,000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
p ) 2021 guaranteed
Total 93,800,000] 19,000,000 6,000,000 106,800,000
(Note 1) Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.
(Note 2)  Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.
(Note 3) Long-term loans payable include current portion.
(Note 4)  Use of the borrowings is appropriated to repayment of outstanding loans payable.
(Note 5)  This long-term loans payable is hedged by interest rate swap contract. The average interest rate reflects the effectiveness of this
hedging instrument.
(Note 6) Annual repayments of long-term loans payable scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 yea

Long-term loans payable

18,000,000

19,000,000

24,000,000

17,000,000

13,000,000
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For the fiscal period ended May 31, 2015:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Bsgl';]:g;g Increase Decrease bE:Igwge interest rate Mf‘;utgty ijusrf de Remarks
Lender (Note D
Short-

. - . Unsecured
term - Sumitomo Mitsui Trust — | 4,000,000| 4,000,000 — | o.2e838% | AP 30 | (Note 2 non-
loans Bank, Limited 2015 uaranteed
payable 9

Total - 4,000,000 4,000,000 -

Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _

Co. LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000

Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,040 - 1,500,000 -

The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,040 - 1,000,000 - March 31 Unsecured,
0.28118% 2015 "l (Note 4 non-

The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,00p — 500,000 - guaranteed

Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 — 500,000 —

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust

Bank, Limited 500,000 - 500,000 -

Sumitomo Mitsui Trust

Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000

Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and

Banking Corporation 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.79955% 2015 ! (Note 2 non-

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — | 3,000,000 guaranteed

The Bank of Tokyo- _ _

Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000

Long-

. L Unsecured
term  f Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 1,400,000 - — | 1400000 0.28078% | I3V 9| (Note 4) non-
loans Bank, Limited 2016

guaranteed
payable

(Note 3 | Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 1.400 000 _ _ 1.400.000| 0.28078% | January 9, (Note 4) Unf]iﬂ_"e‘j'
Banking Corporation 2016 guaranteed
January 9 Unsecured

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 0.28078% 2016y | (Note 4) non-
guaranteed
Unsecured
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ January 9, . ’

Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 1,400,000 1,400,000 0.28078% 2016 (Note 4) non-
guaranteed

. o . Unsecured

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 700,000 - - 700,000| 0.28078% | 20UV 9l (\oie 4) non-
Corporation 2016
guaranteed
Unsecured,
Sovelopment Sank of 700,000 - - 700,000| 0.28078% [ Y2004 % (Note ) non-
P ) guaranteed
Mitsu‘bishi URJ Trgst and 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000
Banking Corporation
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.86572% 2016 ! (Note 2 non-
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 — — | 3,000,000 guaranteed
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking December Unsecured,
c N 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 0.30078% 13, (Note 4) non-
orporation
2016 guaranteed
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category - . Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co.,LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Resona Bank, Limited. 1,500,040 - - 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. 1,000,090 - - 1,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.30578% 2017 (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. 500,00p — — 500,000 guaranteed
Shinkin Central Bank 500,000 — — 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank. Limited 500,000 - — 500,000
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
0.95315% 2017 "| (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ guaranteed
Banking Corporation 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — 3,000,000
. L Unsecured,
pamitormo Mitsul Trust - 780,000 - 780,000| 0.49815% | Y2064 % (Note 2) non-
! guaranteed
. - Unsecured
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and January 9 . ’
- h — 780,000 — 780,000| 0.49815% | (Note 2) non-
Banking Corporation 2018 guaranteed
January 9 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. — 780,000 — 780,000| 0.49815% 2018y | (Note 2) non-
L guaranteed
ong- Unsecured
term The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ on | January 9,1 S
loans Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 780,000 780,000| 0.49815% 2018 (Note 2) non J
payable guaranteed
. L . Unsecured,
(Note 3 Sumltomp Mitsui Banking _ 390,000 _ 390,000| 0.49815% January 9, (Note 2) hon-
Corporation 2018
guaranteed
Unsecured,
Sovelopment Sank of - 390,000 - 390,000| 0.49815% | Y2064 % (Note 2) non-
P ) guaranteed
. - Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 0.68315% | March 31 . !
L 5,000,000 - — 5,000,000 "| (Note 4) non-
Bank, Limited (Note 2018 guaranteed
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 3,000,000 - — 3,000,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
Bank, Limited 3,000,000 - - 8,000,000 June 13 Unsecured,
- — 1.06309% 2018 "| (Note 2 non-
Mltsu_blshl UFJ Trust and 3,000,000 _ _ 3,000,000 guaranteed
Banking Corporation
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 3,000,000 3,000,000
. o Unsecured,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust - 500,000 - 500,000 0.52304% | 20UV 9l (\oie 2) non-
Bank, Limited 2019
guaranteed
. o Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UP) Truist and - 500,000 - 500,000| 0.523049% | Y208V % (Note 2) non-
9 P guaranteed
January 9 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. = 500,000 — 500,000| 0.52304% 2019y | (Note 2) non-
guaranteed
Unsecured
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ o | January 9, : -
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 500,000 500,000| 0.52304% 2019 (Note 2) non
guaranteed
. o . Unsecured,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking - 250,000 - 250,000| 0.52304% [ J3NUEY 9l (Noie o) non-
Corporation 2019
guaranteed
Unsecured,
Sovelopment Sank of - 250,000 - 250,000| 0.52304% [ Y208 % (Note 2) non-
P ) guaranteed
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(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category - . Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds

. - . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 800,000 - - 800,000 0.910419% | APT 19 | (nore o non-
Bank, Limited 2019 guaranteed

. o . Unsecured
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ o April 19, o
Banking Corporation 800,000 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 gu:;%teed

Aoril 19 Unsecured,

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 800,000 - - 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 ! (Note 2 non-
guaranteed
- Unsecured
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ April 19, -
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 800,000 800,000| 0.91941% 2019 (Note 2 gu:g;teed

. L ) - Unsecured
g“m'tom.o Mitsui Banking 400,000 - - 400,000| 0.010410 | AP 19 | (Note 2 non-

orporation 2019 guaranteed

. Unsecured,
?:Vgéomem Bank of 400,000 - - 400,000| 0.91941% A%'llgg' (Note 2 non-
p ) guaranteed
Unsecured
Development Bank of _ _ June 13,
Japan Inc. 6,000,000 6,000,000 1.19051% 2019 (Note 2 non-
guaranteed

. o Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust _ _ July 9, : S
Bank, Limited 340,000 340,000| 0.54352% 2019 (Note 2) gu:g;teed

. o Unsecured
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and - 340,000 - 340,000 0.543520% | Y | (Note 2) non-
Banking Corporation 2019 guaranteed

Julv 9 Unsecured

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 340,000 - 340,000| 0.54352% 20{9’ (Note 2) non-
guaranteed
Unsecured,

The Bank of Tokyo- - 340,000 - 340,000 0543529% | "W | (Note 2) non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2019 guaranteed

. o . Unsecured
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking _ _ July 9, : '
Corporation 170,000 170,000| 0.54352% 2019 (Note 2) gugr(;-teed

Unsecured,
Development Bank of - 170,000 - 170,000 0543529% | WO | (Note 2) non-
. Japan Inc. 2019
Long guaranteed
M [ Mizuho Trust & Banki
loans izuho Trus anking _ _
payable Co.,LTD. 1,500,000 1,500,000 August Unsecured,
(Note 3 0.51000% 29, (Note 4 non-
Shinkin Central Bank 1,500,00p - — | 1500000 2019 guaranteed

. o January Unsecured,
pamitamo Mitsul Trust 160,000 - - 160,000| 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-

’ 2020 guaranteed

. L January Unsecured,
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and 160,000 - - 160,000 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-
Banking Corporation 2020 guaranteed

January Unsecured,

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 160,000 - - 160,000| 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,

The Bank of Tokyo- 160,000 - - 160,000 0.93846% 10, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2020 guaranteed

. L ) January Unsecured,
cumitorio Mitsui Banking 80,000 - - 80,000 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-

p 2020 guaranteed

January Unsecured,
?:Vgéomem Bank of 80,000 - - 80,000 0.93846% | 10, (Note 2 non-

P ) 2020 guaranteed

. L January Unsecured,
ggnm;toLTn?n'ggS“' Trust 600,000 - - 600,000| 0.72546% | 10, (Note 4) non-

’ 2020 guaranteed
. - January Unsecured,
’é";:zia';hc'ggi r-;l;;lLé)Sr;[ and 600,000 - - 600,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 600,000 - - 600,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-
2020 guaranteed
January Unsecured,

The Bank of Tokyo- 600,000 - - 600,000 0.72546% | 10, (Note 4) non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 2020 guaranteed

. o . January Unsecured,
Qumitorio Mitsul Banking 300,000 - - 300,000 0.72546% | 10, (Note 4) non-

P 2020 guaranteed
Development Bank of January Unsecured,
Japan Inc 300,000 - - 300,000| 0.72546% 10, (Note 4) non-

P ) 2020 guaranteed

- 64 -



(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Category _— . Average .
Beginning Ending : Maturity Use of
Increase Decrease interest rate Remarks
Lender balance balance (Note D date funds
Resona Bank, Limited. - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
The Bank of Fukuoka, Ltd. - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 Unsecured
0.52500% | M3H 3L (Note 4 non-
The Gunma Bank, Ltd. - 500,000 - 500,000 guaranteed
The Norinchukin Bank - 500,000 - 500,000
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust December Unsecured,
. 1,060,000 - - 1,060,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
Bank, Limited
2020 guaranteed
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and December Unsecured,
Banking Corporation 1,060,000 — - 1,060,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
9 p 2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,060,000 — — 1,060,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-
2020 guaranteed
December Unsecured,
m‘i fggﬁﬂ;"kﬁ’t‘é‘ 1,060,000 - —| 1060000 1.07980% | 19, (Note 2 non-
P 2020 guaranteed
Sumitomo Mitsui Bankin December Unsecured,
Corporation 9 530,000 - - 530,000| 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-

P 2020 guaranteed
Development Bank of December Unsecured,
Japan IFr’1c 530,000 - - 530,000 1.07980% 19, (Note 2 non-

p ) 2020 guaranteed
. - January Unsecured,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 1,340,000 - — | 1,340,000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
Bank, Limited
2021 guaranteed
. o January Unsecured,
Long- 'g";ﬁtiﬁ'sr‘c'gi st and |1 340,000 - — | 1,340,000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
term g Corp 2021 guaranteed
|°a”l; January Unsecured,
payab'e | wizuho Bank, Ltd. 1,340,000 - - 1,340,000 1.07856% 10, (Note 2 non-
(Note 3 2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
The Bank of Tokyo- 1,340,000 - — | 1.340,000| 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
2021 guaranteed
. - . January Unsecured,
(S:“m'tom.o Mitsui Banking 670,000 - - 670,000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
orporation 2021 guaranteed
January Unsecured,
JD:";'f’l‘;Tem Bank of 670,000 - - 670,000 1.07856% | 10, (Note 2 non-
p ) 2021 guaranteed
. - Unsecured,
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust - 840,000 - 840,000 0.73690% | J3NUAY 9l (Noie 2) non-
Bank, Limited 2022 guaranteed
. - Unsecured
Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and _ _ o, | January 9, : -
Banking Corporation 840,000 840,000| 0.73690% 2029 (Note 2) gu:g:need
January 9 Unsecured,
Mizuho Bank, Ltd. - 840,000 - 840,000 0.73690% 2022y | (Note 2) non-
guaranteed
Unsecured
The Bank of Tokyo- _ _ o January 9, . -
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. 840,000 840,000| 0.73690% 2022 (Note 2) gu;%r;teed
. L ] Unsecured,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking - 420,000 - 420,000| 0.73690% | YUY Il (\oic 2) non-
Corporation ! ! : 2022 : guaranteed
Unsecured,
Development Bank of - 420,000 - 420,000 0.73690% | JANUAY Ol (Note 2) non-
Japan Inc. 2022 guaranteed
Mizuho Trust & Banking _ _
Co.LTD. 2,000,000 2,000,000 March 31 Unsecured,
0.68500% 2022 "I (Note 4 non-
Shinkin Central Bank - 500,000 - 500,000 guaranteed
Total 106,800,000| 18,300,000 6,000,000| 119,100,000

(Note 1) Weighted average rate, rounding to the sixth decimal place.
(Note 2) Use of the borrowings is acquisition of the real estate trust beneficiary interests.
(Note 3) Long-term loans payable include current portion.

(Note 4)  Use of the borrowings is appropriated to repayment of outstanding loans payable.
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(Note 5)  This long-term loans payable is hedged by interest rate swap contract. The average interest rate reflects the effectiveness of this
hedging instrument.

(Note 6) Annual repayments of long-term loans payable scheduled for next five years after each balance sheet date were as follows:

(Unit: Thousands of yen)

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 yearg 4-5 yeals

Long-term loans payable 19,000,000 24,000,000 20,900,000 18,500,000 18,000,000
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